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Egerton University Annwal Report and Financial Stutements for the year ended 300k June 2008

KEY UNIVERSITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

{#) ., Background Information s

Egerton University is the premier Agricultural Public University in Kénva, It was founded in
1939 ynder the name Eperton Farm School. By 1933, it was upgraded and renamed Egerton
Agricultural College. It became a constituent college of the University of Nairobi in 1986 and a
year later in 1987 became a fully Mledged University following the Enactment of the Egerton
Universitv Act of 1987, This Act was repealed and replaced by the Universitics Act No 42 of
2002,

Egerton University has three (3) active Campuses and ene Campus College, The main Campus is
based at Njoro and houses the Faculties of Agriculiure, Arts and Social Sciences, Education and
Community Studies, Engineering and Technology, Environment and Rescurces Development,
Science and Veterinary Medicine and Surgery, The Njoro Campus also houses the Board of
Undergraduate Studies and Field Attachment, and the Board of Postgraduate Studies, The other
Campus is the Nairobi City Campus, offering programmes from the Faculties of Ants and Social
Sciences, Commerce, and Education and Community Studies, 1t also hosts the African Centre for
Distance Education (ACDE), The third Campus, Kenyatta Campus, is located five {5) kilometres
from Njoro Campus and is planned to house the Open and Distance Learning (CODL)
programmes which is currently based at Njoro Campus, The only University’s Campus College,
Nakuru Town Campus College, hosts the Faculties of Commerce, Law and Health Sciences. The
University currently has ten (10) faculties, one (1) institute of Gender and fifty-one (51}
academic departments offering a wide range of programmes at diploma, undergraduate, and
postgraduate levels, All of them are open to both Government-sponsored and self-sponsored
siudents. The University also offers courses in computer literacy, computer repairs and
maintenance, as well as accounting and bridging courses. Baringe Campus has not been viable
and is in the process of closure.

(b} Principal Activities

The Core business of the University as provided by the Universities Act No 42 of 2012 of the
Laws of Kenva includes:

e Advancement of knowledge through teaching, scholarly research and
seientific investigation;

s Promotion of learning in the student body and soctety in general;

¢ Promotion of cultural and social Jife of society;

s Support and contribution to the realization of national economic and social development:

+ Promotion of the highest standards in, and quality of, teaching and research;

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is 150 2001:2008 Certified
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018

=  FEducation, training and retraining higher level professional, technical and management

personnel;
o Dissemination of the outcomes of the research conducted by the university 1o the general

community;
» Facilitation of lite-long leaming througn provision of adult and continuing education:
¢ Fostering of a capacity for independent critical thinking among 113 students; and
* Promotion of gender balance and equality of opporiunily among students and employees.
* Promotion of equalization for persons with disabilities, minorities and other marginalized

LTOLPS.
i. Yision

A world class University for the advancement of humanity.

ii. Mission
To offer exemplary education to society and penerate knowledge for national and global
development.

iii. Core Values

The University™s activitics and decisions will be guided by the following core values:

»  National unity;
Internationalism;

w

s Passion for excellence;
& Professionalism;

s Devotion to duty;

» [ntegrity, transparency, and accountability,
#  Social faimess

(c) Key Management

The University’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
. University Council

. University Management Board

. The Senate

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is 150 90012008 Cerlified
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30k June 2018

(d) 'Fiduciary Management
The key management personnel who held office during the financial vear ended 30™ June 2018
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility are shown on pages 12 - 15.

(e} Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The University Council is responsible and accountable to the Government of Kenya through the
Ministry of Education, Science and Technology for ensuring that the University complies with
the Universities Act 2012, the University Statutes (20173) and adheres to the highest standards of
corporate governance as prescribed in the State Corporations Act and the University Council
Charter.

The Council consists of nine members- the Chairman & five other members. representative of
the Mational Treasury, Representative of the Pnncipal Secretary Ministry of Education and the
Viee Chancellor.

() Headguarters
P.O. Box 536 - 20115, EGERTON,
Njoro Campus,
Njoro Mau Narok Road,
NJIORO, KENYA

2} Contacts
Tel: (254) 051-2217891,/2/051-2217781
E-mail: info@egertonac.ke
Website: www.egerion.ac. ke

(h}  Bankers 2. Co-operative Bank of Kenya Lid,
1. Kenya Commercial Bank Lid, P.0. Box 2982 — 20100,
Egerton Liniversity Branch. NAKURU

P.O. Box 248 - 20115,
EGERTON

3. Barclays Bank of Kenya Lid.
P.O. Box 66- 20100
NAKURU

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is 150 W01 :2008 Certified
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Eperton University Annual Repore and Financial Statements for the pear ended J0th June 2018

(i)

Independent Auditors () Principal Legal Adviser
Auditor General Sheth & Wathigo Advocates
Kenya National Audit Office Vickers Building
Anniversary Towers, Lniversily Way P.O. Box 611 —-20100

PO, Box 30084 Makuru, Kenva

GPO 00100

MNairobi, Kenva

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is [S0 9001:2008 Certified
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Egerion University Avnunl Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018

THE CHANCELLOR

PROFESSOR SHEM OY OO0 WANDIGA, EBS, FRSC
EBS, Frse, B.S¢ (Howard University), M.Sc, (Marvland), Ph.D (Reserve University)
YOB: 1930

WORK EXPERIENCE
A long working experience in academia, research, consultancy, adminstrative and advisory
UON: Professor; DVC {Administration & Finance); Principal College of Brological & Physical
Sctence; COD Chemistry Dept.; bnr. Lecturer: Lecturer (inorganic Chemistry.
Co-ordinator University Investment Project; Chalrman Kenya National Academy of Sciences;
Chairman International Geosphere-Bilosphere Programme Kenva Committes; Chairman
Constitutive Committee of African Unjon of Pure & Applied Chemistry and a member Kenya
Chemical Society,

Kenya's Representative to UNESCO Executive Board; Expert Consultants to UNEP; Member of
Greneral of the International Council of Scientific Unions; Charrman Programme and Exlemnal
Relations Commissions of UUNESCO Exgcutive Boand: Member World Conference on Science

Case Western Reserve Universily & [?nivcfsit:,' of Maryland: Teaching AssistanL
Inter American University! Temporary Assistant Professor of Chemistry.
Just to mention a few of his expansive work experiences

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Edueation™
Egerton Universitly is IS0 9001:2008 Certified
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financtal Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018

THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

NAME: Dr. Ben Chumo

* YOB: 1936
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: 1
Council Chairman; Chairman of Appointments Commities
QUALIFICATION: B.A (UoM), M.BA (UoN), PhD (JKUAT)
WORK EXPERIENCE
KPLC: MD & CEQ, Chief Manager HR & Administration, Employees
Benefits Manager, Principal Administration Officer, Principal HR Officer
{Training & Development), Principal HR OfTicer (Coast Region), Principal
HR Officer (Administration), Senior HR Officer (Manpower Planning,
Recruitment, Training & Development), Senior HR Otficer (Nairobi Area),
HR Officer (Training School), Assistant HR officer {Staff Housing).

NAME: Mr. Joshua Nvangidi Otieno
YOB: 1976
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:
Council Member; Chairman Planning, Development & Fund-Raising
Commitiee; Member Chairpersen Audit. Governance & Risk Management
Committee; Member Sealing & Honorary Degree Commutiee; Member
Appointments Committee
QUALIFICATION: B.Ed. (KU}, MBA, (KL}
WORK EXPERIENCE
KCA University; Manager, Centre for Entrepreneurship & Leadership;
Lecturer KCA University; Lead Researcher in the Africa Bio-diversity
Conservation and Innovation Centre & CIC Insurance Company,
Business Consultant and Trainer at Kenya Market Trust and Parsons Lid.

1 Business Trainer, Africa Youth Trust; Part-time Lecturer: JKUAT, Kenyatta
University & Moi University

NAME: Mr. Joseph Mwaura Kamau
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:
Council Member - Rep. P.S. The National Treasury, Member Audit,
Governance and Risk Management Committes; Member Planning,
Development & Fund-Raising Committee; Member Sealing & Honorary
Degree Commitice

QUALIFICATION: B.A. (UoN), MBA-Finance (KAIST), Masters of
Finance & Banking (Moi)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Government of Kenva National Treasury [nvestment Officer, Equity
Bank (K) Ltd Operations Manager Corporate Division, Standard
Chartered Bank (K) Lid Customer Service Manager Langata.

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Edueation™
Egerton University is 180 9001:2008 Centificd
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NAME: Dr. Charity C. Myaga

YORB: 1955

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:

Council Member; Chairperson Audit, Governance and Risk
Management Committee; Member Tegemeo, Academic and
Research Committee: Member Grevances Handling and
Appeals Committee; Member Appointments Commitiee
QUALIFICATION: B.Ed. (UoN), M.Ed (KLU}, Ph.D (KLU
WORK EXPERIENCE

Ministry of Education: Deputy Director of Education: Senior
Assistant Director of Education; Kiini Mixed Boarding
Secondary School: Principal Graduate Teacher I Principal
Graduate Teacher [I; Njuri Mixed Boarding Secondary
School: Principal Graduate Teacher D Senior Graduate
Teacher: Head Teacher; Graduate [ Kveni Girls High School;
Graduate Teacher 1; Graduate Teacher Mukuuni Sccondary
School: Untrained Teacher

NAME: Mr. Mugambi 1, Nyaga

YOB: 1963

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:
Couneil Member - Rep. P.§. Minisiry of Education, Member
Finance, Human Resources & General Purpose Commitiee;
Member Tegemeo, Academic and Research Commitlee;
Member Grievances Handling and Appeals Committee;
Member Appointments Committee.

QUALIFICATION: B.A{UsN)L MBA (Mo University),
CPSK

WORK EXPERIENCE

Deputy Director, HRM & Development services: Head of
HR Department in the Ministries of; - Local Government,
Regional Development & Prisons Department; Executive of
the President (Cabinet Affairs Office) and Education
{University Education) Senior Assistant Director, Assistan
Director, HR Audit, With PSC of Kenya; Ministry of
Finance: Ag, Deputy Director HRM: Principal HR Officer;
Senior HRM Officer — Office of the president; District
Personnel Officer in Meru South & Mbeere districts;
Depity District Personnel Officer, Isiolo District;
Personnel Officer I1, Kenya Airports Authority

b
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NAME: Mrs. Alasa O, Hirsi

YOB: 1962

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:

Council Member; Chairperson Grievances Handlng and "
Appeals Committee; Chairperson Sealing & Honorary
Degree Committee; Member Finance, Human Resources &
Gieneral  Purpose  Committee;  Member  Planning,
Development & Fand-Raising Committes;
QUALIFICATION: Dip. Clin, Med (KMTC), HND (KMTC)
MPH (Western Capce)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Consultamt  with UNFPA, Commissioner - Poverty
Eradication Commission, Assistant Project Officer -
UNICEF, Lecturer — KMTC Nairobi, District Clinical
» Officer — Garissa District '

NAME: Ms. Esther Mukoa Wabuge
YOB: 1976

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:
Counctl Member; Chairman Tegemeo., Academic and
Research Committee: Member Audit, Governance and Risk
Management Committes; Member Grievances Handling and
Appeals Commitiee;

QUALIFICATION: B.Ed (Moi), M.5c. (JKUAT).

WORK EXPERIENCE

Coordinator, Kenya Country Core Group, Project Ofhicer
Training. Management Sciences for Health (MSH) -
Leadership, Management & Sustainability (LMS3) Project.
Associate Consuliant, Kenya National AIDS Steategic Plan.
Kenyva HIV/AIDS Private Sector Business Couneil (KHBC):
Head of Programme & Stakeholder Development; Head of
Training & Business Development; Namawanga Girls' High
School: Biology & Homescience teacher; Research Officer,
Community Management & Training Services (CMTS.EA)
Part-time Lecturer, Kisumu Polytechnic

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education®
Egerton University is 150 WR:2008 Certified
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NAME: Mr. John Nvakawa Ondari

YOB: 1970

FOSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:

Council Member; Chairman Finance, Human Resources &
Ceeneral Purpose Commitiee; Member Tepemeo, Academic
and Research Committee: Member Planning, Development &
Fund-Raising Committee; Member Appointments Committee
QUALIFICATION: B.A. (UoN), M.A_ (TToN)

WORK EXPERIENCE :

Strategic  Advisor, Kenva Water Security & Climate
Resilience Program,  Senior WASH  Advisor, SNV
Netherlands Development Organisation, Kenva. Long Term
Technical Advisor, Kenva Water & Sanitation Programme.
Lemma Development Consultants Lid: Managing Director;
Research Director Economist (WSS Financing Consultant),
World Bank, Water & Sanitation Program — AF. Fconomist/
Statician, Ministry of Planning & the Treasury

NAME: Prof. Rose, A. Mwonva

YOB: 1930

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILIT
Vice-Chancellor

QUALIFICATION

Dip (Egerton). B.S¢., M.Se¢, Ph.D. (Towa)
WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerton  University: Vice Chancellor; Deputy  Vige-
Chancellor {Academic Affairs); Dean of Students: Director
Centre of Women Studies and Gender Analysis; Chairperson
Dept. Of Agriculture & Home Economics; Professor,
Associate Professor, Senior Lecturer, Lecturer

*Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton Ulniversity 1s IS0 9001:2008 Certified
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018

UNIVERSITY MANAGEMENT BOARD :

NAME: Prof. Rose A. Mwonya

YOR: 1950

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY

Vice=Chancellor

QUALIFICATION

Dip {Egerton), B.Sc., M.Sc, Ph.DD, {lowa)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerton University: Vice Chancellor; Deputy Yice-Chancellor
{Academic Affairs); Dean of Students; Director Centre of
Women Studics and Gender Analysis; Chairperson Dept. OF
Agriculiure & Home Economics; Professor, Associate
Professor, Senior Lecturer, Lecturer

MNAME: Prof. Alexander K. Kah

YOB: 1968

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY

Deputy Vice-Chaneellor ( Academic Affairs)
QUALIFICATION

B.Sc., M.Se, (Egerton), Dr. Sc. Agr. (Hobenheim)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerton: Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Academic Affairs);, Dean
Fac. Agriculture; Chairman Dept. Of Animal Science;'
Professor, Associate Professor, Senior Lecturer, Lecturer,
Asst. Lecturer; Teaching Assistant Dept. Animal Science.
Kyoto University (Japan); Visiting Professor, Postdoctoral
Research Scientist.

Consultant ILRT — SLIJ Project; Consulting Scientist —
Livestock Recording Centre (Maivasha); Visiting Scientist
AGBU (University of New England); Consultant — AGRP
(Ethiopia); Consultant - Applied Genetic Network
(Germany); Graduate Fellow — TLRI (Dairy Research
Project): Visiting Researcher — Wageningen University,

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is ISO 9001:2008 Certified
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NAME: Prof. [saac (). Kibwage

YOB: 1954

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Administration, Planning &
Development)

QUALIFICATION

B.Pharm (UoN; M_Pharm, Ph.D (KU, Leuven). FPSK, CSoi.
C.Chem, MRSC

WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerton University: Deputy Vice-Chancellor

( Administration, Planning £ Developmenti)

University of Nairobi: Principal of the College of Health
science, Dean of Faculty/School of Pharmaey, Chainman of
Department, Professor, Associate Professor, Senfor Lecturer,

NAME: 'rof. Alfred C. Kibor

YOB: 1950

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY

Ag Deputy Vice-Chancellor {Research & Extension)
QUALIFICATION

B.V.M., M.Sc. (LLON), Ph.D. (Edinburgh)

WORK EXPERIENCE .

Egerton University: Director (Research & Extension); Associate
Professor; Senior Lecturer (Veterinary Pathology, Microbiology
& Parasitology)

NAME: Prof. Lenah Makhone Wazi

YOB: 1956

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY
Principal (Makuru Town Campus College)
QUALIFICATION

B. S¢., M.Sc. (LLO.N), Ph.D. (Nottingham)
WORK EXPERIENCE

Principal NTCC: Director NTC; Egerton University - Associate
Prof, Snr. Lecturer, Lecturer of Soil Science; Research Officer at
Kenva Marine & Research Institute Kisumu; Research assistant
UON; Research Officer — Natienal Agricultural Laboratories,

| *Transforming Lives Through Quality Edueation™
. Egerton University 1s ISO 9001: 2008 Certified
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“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Eperton University 15 150 HHH 2008 Certified

NAME: Dr. Thomas K. Serrem

YOB: 1962

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY

Registrar (Human Capital & Administration)
QUALIFICATION

B.Ed (Mairabi), M.Ed. {(Manchester), D.Ed. (Bristol)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerion University: Registrar (Admin); Ag. Registrar (Admin);
Deputy Registrar (Admin); Snr. Assistant Registrar (Central
Services); Deputy Registrar {Academic Affairs); Sor. Assisiant
Registrar {Admissions); Assistant Registrar (Academic Affsirs);
Administrative Assistant

Marketing Representative — Xerox Kenya Lid,

NAME: Prof. Scth F. O, Dwido

YOB: 1954

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY

Registrar { Academic Affairs)

QUALIFICATION

B.5¢,, M. Se. (U.O.N) Ph.D. (IHinois)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerton University: Registrar AA; Deputy Registrar AA

Kabarak University: Acting Academic Registrar; Acadermie Dean
Egerton University; Director Quality Assurance: Director Board of
Undergraduates; Associate Prof, Sor. Lecturer, Lecturer in Soil
Physics & Water Management; COD Soil & Water Management
Dept: Research Officer National Apgricullural  Research

Laboratories.

NAME: Prof Bockline Omedo Bebe
YOB: 1963

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY
Ag Director (Research & Exténsion)
QUALIFICATION

Diploma, BS¢ (Egerton), MS¢, PhD (Wageningen) ‘
WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerton University: Ag. Director (Rescarch & Extension); Deputy
Director, Extension outreach and consultancy, Professor of
Livestock Production Systems; Consultant: Livestock Development
Policics: Umiversity curriculum  development: Strategic  plan;
Climate change and adaptation; Livestock value chains

14
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NAME: Mr. Moses O, Ouma

YORB: 1978

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITY

Finance Officer

QUALIFICATION

C.P.A (K). B.Agbm (Egerton), MBA (KL}

WORK EXPERIENCE

Finance Officer - Eperton; Accountant - Kenvan Rural
Roads Authority; Auditor Kenya National Audit Office;
Accountant - The Mater Hospital {Nairabi)

NAME: /s Janegrace Kinyanjui

YORB: 1967

POSITION/KEY RESFONSIBILITY

University Librarian

QUALIFICATION

BA (Egerton}, MSc. (SI5A-Addis Ababa)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Egerton University — University Librarian;

Kabarak University — University Librarian, Deputy University
Librarian, Senior Assistant Librarian;

Egerton University — Assistant Libranan, Senior Library
Assistant

13
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In the vear ended 30™ June 2018, the university achieved a number of milestones key among
them; the university hosted the 64™ World Ploughing Contest, the 3" Mau-Egerton University
Cross Country and the 12" Egerton University International Conference and Research Week
which attracted regional and intemational participants. In addition, the University attracted Kshs
545 million in research funds and grants during the year.

The University's revenue in the year under review was adversely aftecied by reduced students’
enrolment especially selt-sponsored programmes, and extended industrial strikes, which altered
the academic timetable leading to one semester overlapping inte the financial year 2018/19.

The staff costs increased due to the payment of 2013-17 CBA arrears which were awarded and
paid in July and December 2017, and our rented premises remain idle for the betier of the year,

Governance

We are focussed to position Egerton University as a centre of excellence in agricultural truining,
research; extension services and policy formulation to promote food security as part the
Universitys contribution towards the achievement of vision 2030 through flagship projects.

The University has put initiatives for the turnaround of Ngongongen farm and the ARC Hotel 10
make them viable commercial enterprises now run as Egerton University Investment Company
under the management of a Managing Director. The University has introduced cost eulting
measures to remain afloat.

Financing and Policies

During the vear ended 30" June 2018, Egerton University was mainly funded through the
Government Capitation (72%) and Appropriation in Aid (A-I-A) (28%) for ils recurrent
expenditure,

| wish to thank the Government of Kenya, Council members, Management and Staff for their
dedication and participation during the year in striving 10 make Egerton University & world class
University for the advancement of Humanity,

Dr. Ben Chumao, PhD
Chairman, Egerton University Council

T

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education
Egerton University is 150 9001:2008 Centified
16




L

L

B

REPORT OF THE VICE-CHANCELLOGOR

During the financial vear ended 30 June 2008, the oniversity continued to sy focussed on the
path 1o achieving its vision of being a world clasz university for the advancement of humarnity.
lowards this end, the focus remained on enhancing the quality of scademic programs and
research output inchuding imcreasing collaborations with other institutions,

Ihe university achieved a number of milestones in the vear ended 30 June 2018, Key Ao
thern was hosting the 64th World Ploughing Contest, an international event which stiracted
participants from twenty-six countries across the world, and the launching of President Uburu
Kenyatta Doctoral Scholarships Programme which is expected to benefit at least 100 Kenyans,

Industrial activn by staff was the main challenge during the year which hampered revenue
collection while at the same lime escalating costs of operations. In Nairobi, Nakurn and Baringo
campuses, no learning took place for the three months while the university continued to pay rents

leading to Tassive losses.

As 3 result of the industral action stated shove and reduced students™ enrolment, the unversity
did not realize the budgeted revenue for the yvear in terms of twition and other incomes by Ksh
1,138 yullion.

Owver the last seven vears the following are the trends of surpluses (defieits) realised Dy the end
of each financial vear:

Seven-year Surplus/Deficit Trends

Incowe/Expesditare (Kshs 0005} Jume 2013] Fome 2003|  une 2014] June 2075] Juse 2016 Jume 2017| Jume 2014
Total Income | ianises]| aeiess| ammaes] Saenaw| spnaM| esenies| 52009 |
Total Expendinee | Tareme] ainnor | Sadag91 | SASESAD | SEmam| 410 | 5894038
Surptos(Defict) ari | s0ee | Mer | paass| e me| (R (TIN
Exp us 2 *stage ef income 11 5% gita 0¥ 10%% Ll
PR [ e — —
1"““ —— - —--—:—_— e —— e = — T - '— - -. —_— |
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fion- aperstinadjpdiment nxpenses charged amouiting w0 Kah 158 millinn {deprecmyon Kzh
138 million Tuition Waivar Tl 17 imillion, Bad dehte provigion ¥sh | milhon) aod 1o
peceient pevopue shptfall of Kah 1,038 anibluon og sbowi i page 14

The univarity cxpected e fatmm o ged fpher s of the cpetdning eivimmmmant Tes
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ex[laie why the selfsponzorad stdenis’ aumbers did not sige a5 had befen projectad. This

sitmation is expecied 1o conlinge mo the foure.

The university is therefore taking drstic steps to diversify its revenue sources away o
peliance on smdents, The new focos s on Income Gencranng Lnits af the univessity like the
firm, the hotel among others: At the sawe dme the umversity i mplementing susrenty
measiies at all fimes and =mboieing sutemalion sp 85 10 cut operating expiensce m thecoming
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

The University Council is responsible and accountable to the Government of Kenva through the
Wimistry of Education, Science and Technology for ensuring that the University complies with
the LUiniversitics Act 2012, the University Statutes (2013) and adheres to the highest standards of
corporale governance as prescribed in the State Corporalions Act and the University Couneil
Charler.

The Council consists of nine members- the Chairman & five other members, representative of
the Mational Treasury, Representative of the Principal Secretary Ministry of Education Science
& Technology and the Vice Chancellor. The functions of the Council are:

(i Administer the property and funds of the University in 2 manner and for purposes which
ghall promote the best interests of the University; but the Couneil shall not charge or
dispose of immovable property of the Umversity without prior approval of the

k Chancellor;

{ii] Receive on behalf of the University or a constituent college, donations. endowments there
from to the constituent college or other bodies or persons;

(1) Provide for the welfare of the stafT and students of the Tniversity;

{ivi  Enter into association with other Universities or other institutions of learning, whether
within or cutside Kenyva as the Council may deem necessary and appropriate; and

{v) After consultation with the Senate, make regulations governing the conduct and
dizcipline of the students of the University.

The Committees have delegated authority to assist the Council effectively camy out its
oblipations.

The University Council and its Committees are supported by the University Management Board
which consists of ten members.

The Council has seven committees namely;

Finance, Human Resources and General Purposes Committee
Audit, Governance and Risk Management Committee
Planning, Development & Fund-Raising Commitiee
Tepemeo. Academic snd Research Committes

Gricvances Handling and Appeals Commitlee

6. Seahng and Honorary Degree Commitiog

- Appointments Commitiee

b L by —
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The Terms of Reference for the Commuttees of Council are;
1. Finance, Human Resources and General Purposes Committes

The Commitiee recommends to the Council for its approval the annual report and financial
statements, annual estimates and expenditure, recommend policics on Finance and Human
Resource to Council for approval, decide on disciplinary matters for staft in Grade XI1I-XV, and
shall pay due regard to the necessity to refer matters of major importance to the Council for final

spproval,
2. Audit, Governance and Risk Management Committee

The Committes ensures compliance to intemal control processes, accurate preparation of
financial reporting of results, operations and statements in compliance with legal and statutory
requirements and standards; ensures the University complies with internal and external audits,
develop risk management strategies, monitor institutional governance, and monitor compliance
of the performance contract, and quality assurance.

3. Planning, Development & Fund-Raising Committee

The Commitiee mobflizes financial resources for the development of the University, take charge
for all arrangements for planning and development of the University and construction of new
buildings, advocate on behalf of the University and enhance the marketing of the University
locally and imternationally, provide advice and assistance to Depuly Vice-Chancellor
{Administration, Planning and Development) with respect to corporate sponsorship and private
source fund raising activitics, and pay due regard to the necessity to refer matters of major
impaortance to the Council for final approval.

4. Tegemeo, Academic and Research Committee

The Committee advises on the development and implementation of academic and research
programmes and policies; make recommendations for the sourcing. administration and
distribution of scholarships; oversee a reward scheme for excellence in teaching, research and
extension; receive regular reports from and provide advice to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor
(Academic Affairs) and the Deputy Vice-Chancelior (Research and Extension) on the
development of policy and procedures relating to academvic  and research; approve the legemeo
Institute’s annual budget, business plans and policies; ensure good management and identify risk
and internal controls in the Tegemeo Institute; promote and integrale good corporate governance
at the leadership management and in all levels of the Tegemeo Institute; strategize on the
Tegemeo Institute’s development and sustainability: and consider and report any matter referred
to 1t by the Council and Senate.

5. Grievances Handling and Appeals Committee

The Commitiee oversecs siaff, students and other stakeholder's grievances; and blﬂﬂ and
students appeal against disciplinary action,

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
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6. Sealing and Honorary Degree Commitiee

The Committee authorizes affixing of the University seal to appropriate decuments on behalf of
the Council; and nomination of distinguished personalities in various fields for the conferment of

honorary degrees of the University,
7. Appointments Committee

The Commitee appoints Professors and Staff in Grade 15; search candidates for position of
Principal’s: Deputy Vice-Chancellors and Vice-Chancellor and make recommendations to the
Council; and consider disciplinary matters for Principals and Deputy Viee-Chancellor™s amd
recommend 1o Council.

Council Meetings Attendance Financial Year 20072018

a) Attendance — 4" July to 22" Aupgust 2017

No. |Council Meuber FCM  |AG&RM| PDF [TA&R |FHR&GPISPDFCC [FCM  |SPDFC |SFHR& [SCM
| T (8T 6717 (&717 [T |TAT (27917 |CAS17 [GP NANT|12R17
1|Dr. Ben Clueme X X X
2 Migmehi T Noaga X X X X X X
 3{Esther M. Wabuge T X X X
4[Mrs. Alasa O, Hrm X X X A X b s
5iDx, Charity C. Nynga X X X X X
§Joshua Nyangidi Oizee A x X X X X X
7| lobn Nyakawa Ondari X | X r | X X X | X X
£ Toseph Kaman Mwaxa X | X | % X X X X
O1Prof. Rose A Mwema r | X | X | X b X X X X A
b) Attendance - 22" September to 30" November 2017
No, |Council Member SAGKR [FHR&G GHA  (SPDFCC|GHA  |TA&R |AGRR (AGER [FOM  |SHDC
¥ M P 26907 1M1 (1007 31AelT M T M 191117 131117
ot (207 11117 [1I0yn
|| D¢, Bens Chumo X
| Mugamibi 1. ¥yaza X X X X
3| Esther M. Walmge | X X X x X X X
4[Mrs. Alasa 0. Hirsi X X X X X
3|0 Charty €. Kvagn X X X p ! X X X
it Joshua Nvanpid Otieno X X | X X X
7| ok Nk Omdari X X | x X
&|Toseph Kamao Mwaira X : X %
B[Prof. Kose A Mmema X X X X X X
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¢) Attendance - 1* December 2017 to 29" January 2018

-

Egerton University is [SO 90012008 Certified

o

Na. |Coascil Meuber ASK(WPC)GC  [FHR&GP [FCM  |SFHRRGPISCM [PEN  [VPC  (FHR&GP FOM
T P e Y ?Zlu'].!l']‘.f W7 YR VUIS (8118 (2108 SN
1{Dr. Ben Chuamo X X X X X X
2|V . Nvags X X X X X X I | X
JiEsther M. Wabage X X I | X X
4 Mrs. Alasa . Hra X X X X X i X X X
$iDr. Chariy C. Nyagz X X X X X
8} Joshua Nyangich Otieno X X X X X
7| John Nyakawa Ondan X X i A X X X X X X
blJoseph Kaman Mwaura X X X | X
AProf Bose A Muwosva X X X X X X | X X X X
d) Attendance — 10™ February to 16" April 2018
Na. [Counril Menber EMCC  [SPRRRGP [scM  [TABR  [AGaRM (Pos AGRAM |CRUMDBSM (CEUMBM ism
WaE ([13/28  9fy8 [fy08 (20318 [y (718 1S/4/18 |1efef1e bfajie
L|Dr. Ben Clusme X X 4 X
HiMugambi . Nvaga L L X X .
1 Esther M. Wiakeage :1 X X X u X X X
Aihles. Alasa O, Hirsi d X X i K i
3:0n. Chamy €. Fyaga X ) X " ) i 5 ]
ff Tosln H\'MEE:'I'J:: i X b o X i ¥ q
7\ John Wyakawa Ondan X i * X L X i
SiJeseph Kamau Mwama ¥ X L ¥ # i L
o{Praf Rese A Mwoewa ¥ X " i ! i
¢} Attendance 17" April to 9 May 2018 ‘
e, [Conmcil Member CRUMEM [Sche [caumanm |ac fTe POF |H1HI|E'P M [sAGERM |TRER Lﬁ;;ﬁ
1774018 |i7fafie aRfefia  |isfafiE (250a01E (AfsfR (7/S1B f 12 |Bfsfie  [sfsfa8 J18
1| Dr. B Chumo 2 | x X %
2{Mugambl | Myags i K |
_J|Esther M. Walnige x ] X %
4|%Ire Alzsa © Hr= X k] i x X
S|Dr. Chariy €. Nvaga | % X X ¥
| Fashus Nivarasdi Ot X L i ¥ ¥
7| Tahn Fvakaws Ondart [ i i :-: % %
§|Jaseph Kamae Mwaaa x 4 4 ] 5
%Prof M A Moonya ¥ ¥ K K X K X
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™

| f) Attendance — 11" May to 15" June 2018

| Xo. |Council Member AGREM |AC SFHERGP (FCM |CEMAVTIICM  [FEm A st |sem |ee
| 516 (105018 170518 (A)5/18 |2f5fE (1SR ﬁﬂ'ﬁ‘ls 5518 (4618 |11/6f1E [15/618
m
" 1iDs. Ben Chumo i ' ¥ X X ¥ g X | x
- 2D\fagambi ] Nyaga x| %
3| Esther M Walwgze i X X 5 X X X
4)3fs Alaa O Hadi [ i L] X b i .| ]
r HDr, Charey C. Nvaga £ | K b X | K .
b Fesbua Nyangid Oteno i i K - | | i )
T ahm Myakawa Chodan | a i X it L i
¥{Toseph Keman Mwawra x | | » X i i X i
§!Prof Rese A, Mwera | & N ' | x x | X X
¥ #
e
§
b
L
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LIST OF ABBRIVIATIONS

o, (Ees Lrescriprios
AL Appoimmars Comrinee
AGERAL Audn Govemance & Risk Masegenisit Citmmimes ™
JCESE Cowapcll Evaluarm Maetmyg
b (i Counell meeting
SHCNL em the TREA Consuluaiive Meetng o e tomes ol Relerence B emernal audiiy
6 with UMB Ceeuhatiee seenng with Ussversiy mangement Boaed ]
TIEMITVNE, Coumcl Members Yk o Viion 2030 Njore River B ehabiliasen
E|CMTRR Comncd Members Tramme on Fisk Repster E—
g|CANELCE Comcd Members Vi v Eperton Universiy Capiral Progecns :
1 ENRCOL Epenion Mdau Cross coleery
L FAPEAT Finance, Audr. Procurement & audi Trakess
12 {FHR &G Foance, Human Resomees & Cepsal Pupated Commates
13pEC Graduabon Ceremiomy
I4pGHA Grievances Handing & Apoeals Commines
15[PEN Prer fovmomce Comtract Negottam
i|rPOF Plamng Developanents & Fund raising Commiies
L #{SE Sealng Comemimes
I Special Council Meeting
1B{EHDL Seabng and Honerary Degree Commines
M| TALR Tegeames Academic & Restarch Commmes
21| TCGE | Todx of Dhi-geing Projects
2IVERPRC VimEg Capeal Projects & Pretentaton of Perfoinmmee Cooma
JAFCM Full Counctl b leefrsy
SCELMBEWOPER [Coumell & UMEB Wotkshop oo Procuremient and feview of Swaeaic Plag
2ESIF HREGPLPDEF [Special Jomt Finance Himan Resoarse & General Purposes & Plising Develioment & Fond raising |
2CALC & LB Cpuied] Meeeing wit the Chancelor & LAH Membey
INECPC Evalusnien of Pecfommance Comract
2BSPOECC Specudl Plasrmyg Developenen & Fiend raising Commramee of Council
_mver  |Vieosg Cagnal Praors
VTR RACK [nduction Traming Workshop for Newly Aoported Councd Xembers
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PART 1: ANALYSIS OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
i. Revenue

The revenues of the University have been as shown in table | and figure 1 below over the last
SCVCN Years:

Table 1: Seven-vear Revenue trend
Income Tvge Junie 2012| June 20030 Jume 2004] June 2005] June 2616] June 2017 June 2018
Revenue from Exchesge Transacims [oaene | IMLSEE SALARIO | ZIMETT | 1930ER | 1ATREE| AT
Revenue from Non-Exchange Trazsactions 10607 | 181592 335980 | 14RTHI| 34033 395263 |  3TM6ALR
Total Ingome JAMTEO [ 4942480 | 5TV | 5597399 | 5357074 | 4968161 | 5210609

R

2,000,000 //, .
| | Rz roes ligim D hamge

| [ rasaactigni 1

& \—--.——— == - T e N A e T i

Mine2oid’  ReeBRE L himeaomm Corazess o unerome. e 3R :rh-nleﬂﬂl
o W et 1] .

Flgure Lz The rend of Revense over the Jasi seven years

A

Except for CBA arrears for the years 2013 to 2017 of Ksh 727 million received in 2018, the
University's revenue has consisiently declined over the last three yearss The Government
reduced the monthly recurrent capitation by Ksh. 35 million in the year 201 8. However, Gok
and other donors remained the bigpest source of income over the last seven years
averaging 63% (2018-72%) of all revenue. These are the sources described as revenue from
Mon- exchange transactions.

Local AlA accounted for a seven-year average of 40% (2018-28%) of all income (Revenue
from exchange transactions).
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Egerton Lniversity is [SO-5001:2008 Certified

25




Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018

-

Note that the external sources of funding accounted for 72% of all revenue for the year ended
Ture 2018. This is higher than the seven-vear average. meaning that the University 13 becoming
more dependent on external funding, which is not very desirable.

i Expenses

Notwithstanding the shortfalls in revenue #s shown above, expenses remained larpely
congtant especially those expenses that do not depend on level of activity in the University such
as Staff costs. This incresse is also attributed 1o the payment of 2013-2017 CBA arrears in
December 2017,

Sensing the expected revenue shorifall after midyear, the Management instituted austenty
measures aimed at containing expenditure to the best extent possible. The following lable 2 and
figure 2 indicate the expenditure trends over time:

Tahle 2: Seven-vear expenditure trends

Fape nditure Type Jume 2813{ June 2003  Juoe 2014] Juoe 20157 June 2008] June 2017|  Jume 2005] Note
Saff Cosis AR A IMAMES | 18| SIS R0 40NGAR | 14
Cither Experses L2925 | LS00  CLINMA| LIWTW| 23R | 230L1011 210793 [15.03
e e R e 3 - T |

L e

[ R 2033 b TAT | hune JOLA “une 2014 e S buibet DAL T e 1028

Flgwee 2 The trend of Expeadiiore aover the basi seven vears

As shown sbove, the expenses of all categones continued to nse over the last seven years
as shown by the above trend analysis where staff’ cost constitute the highest propertion of
expenses with & seven-vear average being §0% (2018-68%). This is a good indicator, mostly
attributed to minimal expansion of the stafl payroll over the indicated period.

*Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerlon University 15 IO 9001: 2008 Certified
26

[ |



m

m

bad

Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statemenis for the vear ended 30th June 2008

PART 2: ANALYSISOF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following analysis presents a seven-vear movement observed in the financial status of the
University as at the end of cach of the financial years:

i. Property, Plant and Equipment
Table 3: Seven-vear Net Book Values of Property Plant and Equipment (Ksh “001")

__Ksh "0an™ Perconlage proporiions

Lamil & W.ALP| Oiher .-'l:s:etsE Lamd & WP Oither
Tvpe of Property Buildings | Buoibdings Assels
3062012 LOSSE26 | 2472661 136247 | 29% 67% i
HyG 20602 2 Tap 203 2458 30e 3193 Ty 6% i%a
62014 1931947 | nias il 21849 9% 26%) 5%
B0 EEE I CET 174442 Tkt 1%l 184}
'.Eﬁ-"l‘l}lﬁ- 142879 | §.DedA36 156421 1% 73%| %!
Ine 21T 133255 | [ 256098 1R6423 e 2% 4%
JiE A8 T4 L6E | [ Ta3s 119,000 425 LR L 204

"'—f-': LT |H,|. o A v T i ‘. 1_-

Fizord 3; The mibic-up of Propeety, Phod apsd Equiprment {kshs 00T}

The graphs in fipures 3 & fipure 4 above and below respectively show a rise in work in
progress (W-1-P) and decreases in land and buildings over the year 2017/2018. The increase in
work in progress is due to the ongoing works, mostly at the physical sciences complex, the
Library and the main gate.
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Flgure 4! The 1:|_|||||:||:|-i|.:J|:||| of net book valoes o the Lndversily s gaseis aver Dhe seveir- YEslr |'|\‘|"H.IL1

The total assets of the University however continued to rise over the seven-year period as
shown by the following trend in figure 5:

CIN e wmm—— s T R T AT T e ST
Gl e T ST ottt
.-..I ‘. - — - e LS - | - H . Ir'
mwl ' | Pl Ty 1 T — | {
= - -t = ]
4,500,008 - T | '
s00000 |
2,000,000 e S — ]
P —
¥ t : SRR LI e S ' RHE |
- .I = . } i - ..:_1.." '-'" a__ .l A p— 1. Ia

Figire 5: The ivend of Tool Properiy, Plant and Equipment aver the seven-venr period (Rshs “Tie=)
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ii, Working Capital

The Net Working capital is indicated by the difference between current asseis and current
liabilities. The following table 4 and Figure & indicate the net working capital of the Uimiversity

over the last seven years:

Table 4: Seven-year Net Working Capital figures (Ksh “000™)

Current Assets

June 2012) June 2003

Total Ciarrent Assets
Tatal Currert Liahhaes

G 506
345,105

June 014] Juoe 2015! June 2018] June 2017

Jume 1818

L33
TILILE

1,114,158
10L&

[aE1
LImGaLT

| £29.420 ]
252520 |

L 13468

F 4%
1320840

et Workiug Capital

6801 | B54TE

|.i.mnw - —
(]

Tk, (A7

ge7 325

376.900 | (120,662

(1,347,764

| 2000w |

200000 -

1,500,000

1, D0 )

S0 OO

hunc20iq

Tunr 2015

—

Net Working Capital Trend

—

rllr trewil ol Mg Wisrk b |r||1||1'\.|| I|I|_ SV CE-A T r||1|..,|.|l-\ ||- IEME™ )

T

The Net working capital remained in positive between 2012 and 2016 but dipped to negative
territory 1n the last two financial years; 2017 and 2018, This is because we recopnized
the balances of research funds as liabilities (Deferred Income) in line with the new
reporting requirements. The Deferred Income reported during the year amounied to

Kshs 423 Million.

‘Jntulthslandmg_ the abave, the Universily remains constrained in terms of cash flows and is
cxpcncnmng difficulties in meeting its short term financial obligations as &rui when they fall
due, This difficulty is exemplified by the ratios indicated here below:

Current and quick ratios

While Current matio (current asseis/current liabilities) and guick ratio {((Current Assets-

[nventory)/Current liabilities) declined over the seven-year period, the ratios remained in

*Transforming Lives Through CQuality Education™
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healthy territory at more than 1:1 except in the vear ended June 2018 when it fell w0 0.87 and
guick ratio of 0,82 as shown in Table T below.

Tahle 5: Seven-yvear trend of Current and Quick Ratios

Current Assets June J013| June 2003 June 2014) June 2015 Jume 2016 Jume 2017| Jume 2018
Crrent 12t 10 115 168 4 1.2 a3 4
Quick ratio Lot 108 142 1.3 L4 0 0.4

The optimal quick ratio iz 1:1 or higher, but the University’s ratio in 2018 is 0.42 which
means that current liabilities cannot be met from current assets without the need to sell
inventory and agricultural assets. This is a challenge since the University inventories are not
for sale, but rather for use in the processes of service delivery-hence may not be sold.

As shown in table 5 and fgure 7. both ratios declined steadily over the last five vears. It
however still remained at above 1:1 up June 2016, only falling to levels below 1.1 in the vears
ended June 2017 and June 2018,

inﬂ; T z T TP

o

i
e | | | :
0301 ; S—
Tl Tasich rathy
| i '
o - --l l £k -

" ST T 7 T e -
Jun'lg.nﬁ' - MREmIs: o meegnpel | wesees B mins 1917 JupcELe
fi S in : - . ;

Frawre 7 The breod of Current and Uhack rafans over The sevem-yenr pcr-t-d

Compliance with Statutory Requirements

The University has endeavoured to comply with all statutory requiremends during the period
under review. However due to financial constraints the university had in arrears an amount
cqual to Kshs.286m relating to stall pension schemes and Kshs, 61m tor Payv-As-You-Earn and
3.6m for NSSF, NHIF, HELB and NITA tor the month of June 2018,

Key Projects and lnvestment Decisions
The University is constructing an ultra-modemn library at the cost of Ksh 2.1 billion which is
fully funded by the Government, and a Main Cate Complex at the cost of Ksh 65 million
tunded by University's intemal sources.
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Major risks facing the entity
The University operates under a strict credit and debt policy to manage its liquidity risk
EXposure.

Material arrears in statutory/financial obligations
At the close of the year, the University had other unremitted payroll deductions amounting to
Kshs 281m out of which 204m was in relation to Egerton University Sacco deductions.

Financial probity and serious governanece issues
The University has no major financial improbity as reported by intemnal audit'Board audit commitiee,
external auditors, or other National Government Agencies.

Property, Plant and Equipmenis

The value for Land of Kshs. 965,594 800 in the financial report excludes 420 ha of land which
has been alloted o the University in Mpeketoni area. The university has not acquired the title
deed for the land to give way for its valuation and recognition,
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
1. Mau - Egerton University Cross Country and Rehabilitation of River Njoro

As part of Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR), the University held the 5 Edition of Mau-
Egerton University Cross Country on 1(th February 2018. The main objectives of the cross
country are

# To create environmental awareness and

+ To raise funds for the rehabilitation of Njoro River and Mau Ecosystem.
The Mau Ecosystem is one of the largest remaining water towers in Kenya. It is the source of
water for the communities that live as far as western Kenya. However, over the past years the
Mau Ecosystem has experienced massive environmental degradation, Rivers such as Njoro
River originating from this vast ecosystem are also receding and are heavily polluted.  Soil
erosion has also increased as the farmers clear the forest and leave large swathes of steep land
bare. The most affected area is the Easiern part of Mau Forest, which covers Nakuru and Narok
Counties. To create awarencss of environmental degradation of Mau Ecosystem and rehabilitate
MNjoro River, the University initiated the Mau-Egerton University Cross country. The University
has been rehabilitating the river through planting of riparian tree seedlings, clearing of dump
sites, controlling dumping of wastes and water quality monitoring. Other activibes include
support for community-based initatives such as establishment of tree nurseries, construction of
walering troughs, community training on environment, involvement of primary school pupils in
rehabilitation and community sensitizations through the Agricultural Society of Kenya (ASK).

A section of the
polluted River
Njoro
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Acsection ol the
Rehabilitated
River Njoro

Tree planting
exercise in the
Liniversity
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Participants
during the 3"
edition of Mau-
Egerton Cross
Country event
held in Februan-
2018

2. Primary School Mentorship Programme in partnership with Rift Valley Reading
Association

The University, through the Faculty of Education and Community Studies (FEDXCOS) and the
Faculty of Arts and Social Sciences (FASS). have parinered with the Rift Valley Reading
Assoeiation (RVRA) to lay a strong foundation for bright and needy primary school children in
the neighbourhood of the University. This has been made possible through the establishment of
LitClubs in ten primary schools. The mission of this formation is to advocate for literacy and

promote a reading culture among Kenyan vouth.

The goal of the project is to empower primary schoeol children by encouraging them to explore
theit communities and environments, participate in positive activities and tell their siories. This
is cultivated by taking the pupils through a two-vear mentorship programme aimed at developing
seven strengths: Friendship, Belonging, Kindness, Curiosity, Confidence. Courage and Hope.

The schools participating in the project are Kilimo, Egerton, Mwigito, Tengecha, MNdege,
Subuku, Njuguini, Cheploroi, Ngongogeri, and Utafiti. Each of the participating schools has a
LitClub comprising 15 children, aged between 9 and 12 vears. Each club meets for a two-hour
session each week in their respective schools under the leadership of a mentor, who 15 a lecturer
at Egerton University and a member of RVREA. The participating schools have appointed contact
teachers to work with the University mentors.
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3. The 64th World Ploughing Contest

The 64th World Ploughing Contest arganised by ASK was held at Fgerton University on 1 and
2" December 2017, The University worked with ASK on the coordination of the relevant
protocnls 1o make the contest a success. Twenty-six countries participated in the contest, and
Kenyn was the only African country participating in the event. The University has been
privileged 10 host the event twice; in 1995 and December 2017.

\: {

His Excellency the
President. Uhuru
Kenyatta and the
Yice Chancellor,
Prof Mwonya with
the participants of
the Warld Ploughin,
conies]

4. ASK Nakuru National Show & Exhibition

The University participated in the Nakuru National Agricultural Show which was held between
4% and 8" July 2017 under the theme “Promoting Innovation and Technology in Agriculture and
Trade™.
The University emerged top in eight categories, which included position one in five trade stands
and three livestock stands. These were:

I. The Best University Stand;

2. The Best Stand in Research and Development

3, The Best Stand in Agro-Processing

4. The Best in Innovations & Inventions.
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Former Makuru County
Governar, Kinuthin

Mbugua, the Vice =
Chancellor, Prof

Mwonva with other
LJnh':rsjr::' staff during

the ASK Nakuru Show

Agriculbivre & Irrigation
Cabinet Secretary, Hom.
Mwangi Kiunjuri
presenting a trophy 1o
the University's
Industry Lisison
Officer, Prof Symon
Mahungo

5. Seeds of Gold Magazine

The Seeds of Gold Magazine published by the Nation Media Group every Saturday since its
launch on the February 15", 2014 is a farmers’ knowledge sharing magazine. Egerton University
is coniributing to the Magazine through writing of articles and providing expert answers to
guestions posted to the Magazine by readers of the magazine. In addition to offering expert
answers posed by readers and farmers, various articles have been published, authored by stafl
from various faculties: Agriculture, Veterinary Medicine, Sciences and Environment.
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REFORT OF THE COUNCII,

The Council submite their repont together with the financial staizments for the year ended June
30, 2018 which show the state of the University’s fnancial affairs,

Principal activities

The |}1:'[n-:ipnr u::li".-'illc::a: of the Liniversity are shown on page 3,

[Resulis

The results of the University for the Year ended June 30, 2018 are st out on pages 39 - 86,
Council

The members of the Universaly Couneil who servesd during the year are shown on page 8- 11
Auditors

The Auditor Creneral 15 responsible for the statutory andit of the Unversity e accordance with
the Part V1 af the Public Aadil Act 2013

By order of the Council
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Section 81 of the Public Fionies Managemsm Avt, 2012 seqoices the: Conngil 10 pregra
frirancial giatemants n respect of the University, which glve 1 e zndd fair vjew of the state af
affaire of the Ustvasiee st the med of the fingneitl smeelvesind apd the spemting seilis of e
Unlverity Tor the veaniperiod. The Couneil iz alée réquired b ensure thal the Limrversity kaapo
proper scoonntmy reconds which disclose with asopable poomsitey he fipealul position oF e
University, The Cotnedl i alan peamonsiile far sofapending the saeis of the University

The Council 15 responsible for the preparation and presentatinn of the University's financisl

statements, whieh give n e and Fiit view o the state of afairs of the University for snd as at the N
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digigntng, implenwentmg and irintnmng aiethal coatrals pelevant 16 e prepirriin Ak Ly

presenlation of the fiteeclal semems. ok epsiang thad they are [ Iy pumonz 1
siisatatrrnsats. whether die o enoror fmed (v safopuanding the assets of the Univessity, (v

stledling sud apphying AUpfopaiaie sdebunbing prrelfmion miaed Oui) minkimg Sosdpti anrimin

thint e redsonable 10 the citemetnmses

The Crameil aecept rasponsibility for the Universin’s fmancial. staterments, which have heen
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snd estimates, 0 confrmity with International Public Sector Accotunting Standards [[PSAS), and _
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i1 the manner required by the PEM Act, 2012 The Council is of the opiakon that the Unmversity's
financial stalements zive & true and fair view of the state of University's transactions during (he
figinial vear eoded June 30, 2018, and of the University’s financial position ag at that daie. The
couricil further confinm the completeness of the accounting recosds maintemed for the Liniversity,
which have been relied upon in the prepasation of the University's financial statements a5 well az
the adequacy of the systems of intemal financinl control |

Mothing has come fo the attention of the Crnasil o mdicate that the Universte will not remiain o
g oomeertt (et Jenst the neal teelve tannths from the dars of this staterent.
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON THE EGERTON UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Egerton University set oul on pages
40 to 44 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash
flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Seclion 35 of
the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters discussed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, the financial position of Egerton
University as at June 30, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended, In accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis)
and complies with the University Act No.42 of 2012 and Pubic Financial Management Act

2012
Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Expenditure
1.1  Unsupported Expenditure on Teaching Claims

The statement of financial pedformance reports a total expenditure of Kshs.6,145,535,800
which includes academic depariment expenditure of Kshs 476,403,836 as disclosed in note
18 to the statements. Included in Kshs 476 403,836 are teaching claims of Kshs. 373,153,785
which are nol supported by a schedule of individual lacturers or relevant accounting
documentation and as such it was nol possible to confirm the accuracy and completeness of

the expendilure,

1.2 Unexplained Research and Extension Payments

The statement of financial performance reports a total expenditure of Kshs.§,145,535.800
which includes research and extension expenditures of Kshs. 269 589,084 as disclosed in
note 19 to the statements which however, differs with actual ftotal payments of
Kshs. 347,960,172 reflected in bank statements for all prajects during the year resulting to a
differance of Kshs. 78,371,072 which has not been explained or reconciled. Therafore, the
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accuracy and completeness of the expenditure of Kshs.347 960,172 could not be
ascertained.

1.3 Unrealized Gain on Foreign Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial performance reports net income from other gains and losses of
Kshs.6, 768,605 which includes foreign exchange gain of Kshs. 15,007,800 as disclosed in
note 24 to the financial statements that is not supported by actual realized gains or ledger
records showing how the gains wera arrived at. Therefore, the accuracy and completeness
of net income from other gains or losses of Kshs.6, 768,605 could not be confirmed.

2. Current Assels
21 Student Debtors Not Supported by Aging Student List

The statement of financial position reports receivables from exchange transactions of
Kshs. 930,028, 201 which includes student deblors of Kshs 822162831 thal are nol
supported by data on opening balances, billings for the period, payments received and
closing balances. In addition, they have been dassified as current assets while management
has not demonstrated how the outstanding balances will be recovered in full in the next

twelve months.

It was therefore not possible to confirm the accuracy and completenass of receivables from
exchange transactions amount of Kshs.930.028,201

2.2 Agricultural Assets

The statement of financial position reports agricultural assets of Kshs. 28,093,375 which
decreasad from a comparative amount of Kshs 35,540,747 previously reported resuiting to
a loss of Ksha. 7 447 372 that has not been supported by a reconcillation of changes in the
carrying amount of biclogical assets at the beginning and the end of the financial periad in
accordance with IPSAS 27 on Agriculture disclosure réquirements.

3. Current Liabilities
31 Long Overdue Un-presented Cheques

The statement of financial position reporis current liabilities of Kshs 3,122, 186,450 which
ncludes negative cash balances of Kshs.{599,749,161) as at 30 June 2018 representing
cheques written for paymenl of trade creditors and other payables that have been recorded
in the cash book but are still held in the university cash office withoul any reasonable
justification. The act of withholding the cheques has the overall effect of misstating the cash
and cash equivalenl and outstanding creditor's balances al the close of the year thereby

manipulating the financial records.

In addition, the negative cash balances are not supported by corresponding cash outflows
from the university or bank overdraft amounts from commercial banks and therefore its

accuracy, completenass and existence could not be confirmed.
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3.2 Misstatement of Trade Creditors Balance

The statement of financial position as at 20 June 2018 reflects trade and other payables of
Kshs. 1482 277.741 under curent liabilities which includes trade creditors of
Kshs.317,166,362 as disclosad in note 31(a) to the statements that are not in agreement with
the creditors aged analysis balance of Kshs.351,480,345.51 by a difference of
Kshs. 34,323983.51 which has not been reconciled or explained. Therefore, the
completenass and accuracy of the trade and other payables amount could not be confirmed.

3.3 Misstatement of Provigions and Accruals

The statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 reports provisions and accruals
balance of Kshs 617,084,711 which differs with the summary of accrual schedule provided
of Kshs 953,125,240 resulting to a difference of Kshs 336,040,529 which has not been
explained or reconciled. Therefore, the accuracy, completenass and validity of the provisions
and accruals amount of Kshs. 617,084,711 could not be confirmed.

3.4 Deferred Income Not Supported by Budget Performance or Cash Flow Statement

The statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 reports deferred income of
Kshs. 423,084 837 under current liabilities, representing the unused cash balances for
research and extension and doner funded projects which differs with the total closing bank
gertificate balances of Kshs 447, 336,572.79 in respect of all projects on a comparable basis
resulting to a difference of Kghs.24.251,735.79 that has not been explained or reconciled.

In addition, the deferred income balance of Kshs 423 084 837 are nol supporied by budget
performance or cash inflows statement showing how the amount was arrived at and therefore
its completeness and accuracy could nol be confirmed.

3.5 Non-Disclosure of Unremitted Statutory and Voluntary Payroll Deductions in the
Financial Statements

The statement of financial posiion reports current liabilities totaling Kshs.3,122,196,430 as
at 30 June 2018 that excludes outstanding statutory deductions and voluntary employee
contributions of Kshs 437,599,421 and no explanations were provided for the omission.

In addition, these amounts have bsen totally excluded from the books of account and
therefore the basis upon which the financial statements are prepared are questionable since
they do not comply with the requirements of International Public Sector Accounting
Standards - Accrual Basis.

3.6 Non-Disclosure of Annual Leave Days Outstanding Balance
The University payroll records reflects an accumulated pending leave days valued at

Kshs.200, 153,894 as at 307 June 2018 relating to the year 2008 and prior years in respect
of commuted staff leave days that have not been disclosed in the liabilities balance reported
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In the statement of financial position and therefore the completeness and accuracy of
outstanding liabilities amount is conseguently understated by the same amount.

4. Statement of Changes in Net Assets
4.1 Revenue Reserves Transferred Without Council Authorization

The statement of changes in equity and capital for the year ended 30 June 2018
reflects transfers of Kshs 191 027 449 from revenue reserves to deferred income without
being supported by an analysis of revenue allocated to each project during the year and the
relevant approvals by the University Council or National Treasury as the equity owner,

in addition, the fransaction is not recorded in the university books of account or supported by
verifiable accounting documentation and  therefore the accuracy and propriety of
Kshs.191,027 449 transferred from revenue reserves to equity could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (I5S5Als). | am independent of Egerton University in accordance with 1S5A1 30
on Code of Ethies. | have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the [SSA|
and in accordance with other ethical requiremeants applicable to performing audits of financlal
statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion,

Emphasis of Matter
1. Expenditure
1.1 Tegemeo Expenditure Not Processed Through Sage Accounting System

The statement of financial peformance reports a total expenditure of Kshs. 8,145,535 800D
which includes Tegemeo Institute expenditure of Kshs. 181,266,557 as at 30 June 2018 as
disciosed in note 32 to the financial statements which were processed outside the university's
approved financial information system in fotal breach of the Public Financial Management
Act, 2012 provisions and reflected in the financial statements based on reports instead of

official books of account.

As a result of failure by Tegemeo Institute to maintain proper books of account it was not
possible to confirm the accuracy and completenass of the expenditure of Kshs 6,145,535 800
during the year under review.

2. Investments

2.1 Long Outstanding Egerton University Investment Company Limited Loan

The statement of financial position reports Investments of Kshs 150,477 691 which includes
Kshs.149 918 907 loan advanced by Egerton University to Egerfon University Investment
Company Limited (EUICQO) as disclosed in note 30 to the statements which has remained
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unpaid to date with no formal payment plan agreement. Therefore the full recoverability ot
this loan amount may be in doubt in the absence of a formal agreement being made.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. Except for the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, | have determined that there are no other key audit

mallers 1o communicate in my report.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Arlicle 229(6) of the Constituion, based on the audit procedures performed
excepl for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness
in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my
attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied lawfully and in

an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Non- Current Assets

1.1 Land Without Title Documents

The statement of financial position reports property, plant and eguipment of
Kshs.5,003,708 800 as at 30 June 2018 that includes various parcels of land valued at

Kshs.965,594,800 owned by the universily, However, included in Kshs. 065,594 800 are
parcels of land amounting to Kshs 520,624,800 which are not supported by litle deeds.

Further, it was also noted that Mpeketoni land is not included in the list of parcels of land
owned by the university and its valuation is totally omitted from the books of account or the
assel register. Therefore, the ownership and valuation of property, plant and equipment
valued at Kshs. 5,083,798 809 could not be ascertained.

1.2 Work In Progress Not Supported.

The statements of financial position reports property, plant and  equipment of
Kehs.5,003, 798 809 which includes works in progress amount of Kshs.1,700,634,419 as at
10 June 2048, Included in Kshs.1,700,634,419 are additions of Kshs 453,733,398 made
during the year under review which are only supporied by certificates of work done of
Kshs.66,331.421 leaving & balance of Kshs.387,401,798 without being backed by any

cartificate of work done.
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it was therefore not possible to confirm the propriety of the expenditure incurred on works in
progress during the year and the accuracy and completeness of the balances reportad in the

financial statements.
2. Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
2.1 Recurrent Capitation Grant Not Supported by Student Population Data

The statement of financial performance reports revenue from non - exchange transactions of
Kshs.3,736.618,077 as at 30 June 2018 which includes recurrent expenditure capitation
grant of Kshs.3,182,186,700 that is not supported by information on the total number of
government sponsored students, courses undertaken and amount allocated to each in every

financial year.

In the absence of thesa records being maintained by the University, it is unclear on what
basis its revenue and expenditure budgets are made as the dissemination of knowledge to
students is the main core business and this may in the long run negatively affect the
sustainability of its services due o lack of reliable information to bargain for enhanced
capitation

3. Non-Current Assets
3.1 Irregular Award of Modern Library Works Tender to Vaghjiyani Enterprises Ltd

The University through an Open Tender Mo, ELVONT-33/2016-2107 dated 4th April 2016
invited bidders for the construction of proposed modern Library at Egerton University Njoro
Campus. Fourteen bidders submitted their tenders for the works and the tender opened on
ath June 2017 whereupon all the 13 bidders were eliminated at the technical evaluation stage
with an exception Vaghjiyani Enterprises Ltd who was responsive and subsequently invited
to financial tender opening.

However, all the prices quoted by all bidders were not read and recorded in the tender
register in accordance with section 7B(6) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act
2015 thereby defeating the objective of competiion under national open tender procurement
method. The tender was eventually awarded to Vaghijivani Enterprises Lid at a contract sum
of Kshs.2,129,001,805 against a budget provision of Kshs 17,000,000 thereby
overcommitling the university resources to unplanned procurement acfivities.

Further, no financial evaluation or due diligence was carried out on the vendor in accordance
with the tender documents evaluation criteria to assess their suitability and financial ability to
undertake the works and this posas a threat to the quality of works being carried out in the
project.

In addition, the works on the project waere commenced withoul obtaining the approved
architectural and structural drawings from Nakuru County Govermnmentand this may
negatively affect the project scope thereby escalate the project costs due to lack of proper
specifications
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in the circumstances it was not possible to confirm the propriety of the expenditure and if
public funds were properly charged.

3.2 Awards of Contract to Circuit Business Systems (K) Ltd without Budgetary
Allocation

Egerton University Awarded Circuit Business Systems (K) Ltd the contract for the supply,
installation and commissioning of |CT Infrastructure, computers, laptops and media
transmission equipment at a cost of Kshs. 105,215 476 on 27 April 2017 through open tender
Mo.EU-ONT-26-2016-2017 without adequate budgetary provision or professional opinion
from the head of procurement.

Further, the coniract expired on 19th June 2017 and was subsequently renewed for
additional period of eighteen weeks with effect from 13th July 2017 to 30th November 2017
upon the advice of the Depuly Chief Procurement Officer. However, no evidence was
provided to indicate the current performance status of the contract upon its expiry on 30th
November 2017, consequently, the validity of the contract signed could not be confirmed,

3.3 Award of Contract to Technology Associates East Africa Ltd without Approved
Budget

Egerton University contracted Technology Associates East Africa Lid, for the supply,
delivery, installation and commissioning of ICT Infrastructure, Computers, Laptops and
Media Transmission Equipment at a cost of Kshs.93,652.472 on 4 May 2017 against a
budget provision of Kshs.7,260.708.80 in total breach of the Public Procurement and

Disposal Act Prowvisions.

Further, the coniract was awarded without a professional opinion from the head of
procurament contrary to the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act 2015, provisions
and therefore it was not clear what factors the Accounting Officer considered in arriving at
the award decision.

in addition, the contract had not been executed by June 2018 and no status report was
availed for audit scrutiny to confirm the current performance state, therefore the validity of
the contract signed could not be confirmed.

3.4 Irregular Procurement of Security Control Checkpoint and Associated Buildings
(Gate)

Egerton University contracted Mfs. Cell Arc Systems to undertake the construction of security
control check point and associated buildings (Gate) at a cost of Kshs.65,789,848.75 through
open Tender Mo. EU/ONT/D2/2016-2017 as advertised in the Standard Newspaper of
21/7/2016. However, it was noted that they were finally awarded the contract by the
Accounting Officer even though the performance security bond presented by them and
issued by Equity Bank of Kshs.6,578,995 was fraudulent and warranted their disqualification
as was recommend by the university legal officer,
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Therefore, the validity of the contracl signed between the university and Cell Arc Systems
could not be confirmed.

4 Revenue from Exchange Transactions
4.1 Tuition Fees Reversals without Approval and Documentation

The statement of financial perfarmance reports revenue from exchange transactions of
Kshs. 1,474 080,883 as at 30 June 2018 which includes Kshs_1,331,483,613 from tuition and
other related fees as disclosed in note 11 o the financial statements. However, included in
the amount of Kshs. 1,331, 483,613 are tuition and other related fees of Kshs 876, 245,721.80
thal were reserved in the books of account during the year under review without supporting
approvals or accounting documentation explaining their nature or details with the overall
effect of reducing total revenue for the financial year by the same amount.

in the event that the revenue collection system design and controls are not evaluated to
address the process of making reversals and documentation including segregation of duties
and approval levels the university may be exposed to cases of internal fraud or manipulation
of financial records by staff.

The audit was conducted in accordance with 1SSAI 4000. The standard requires that | comply
wilh ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. | believe that
the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for my
conclusion,

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7 (1) (a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit proceduras
performed, excepl for the matlers described in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness of
Internal Centrols, Risk Management and Governance section of my report, | confirm that,
nothing else has come to my attention o cause me to believe that internal controls, risk

management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion
1. Internal Control Weaknesses

1.1 Lack of an Offsite Data Recovery Centre

The University did not have an offsite data recovery center either within the university
location or with an offsite vendor to enable it obtain critical data from its back up store in the
avent of a disastar ocourring in compliance with the Disaster Recovery Policy. This situation
If allowed to continue may impact negatively on the University's ability to resume normal

operations in the event of a disaster happening.
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1.2 Lack of Information Technology Systems Interface

The Management Information Systems used by the university namely Academic Records
Management Systems (ARMS), Student Records Maintenance System (SRMS), Sage
Accpac Accounting System and the Human Resource Management system were nol
integrated or interfaced with each other to facilitate a common shared data base to facilitate
easy access to information and better service delivery in executing the university mandate.

in addition, the technical support for Student Records Maintenance System (SRMS) usage
and maintenance was obtained directly from the software developer without any formal
service level agreement or patent ownership rights. This stale of affairs exposes the
university to disruption of operations in the event the developer discontinues services or locks
the system due to business disagreements.

Further, the Sage Accpac Accounting System used in processing financial information and
statements is unable lo produce final financial statements exposing them to emors of
misstatements and omissions as a results of inadequate controls.

The audit was conducted in accordance with 1SSAI 1315 and ISSAI 1330. The standard
requires that | plan and perform the audit lo obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were operating
affectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
stalements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or srror and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control,

risk management and govermnance.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management aither intends to
liquidate the university or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but o do so.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the Auditor-
General In accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act, 2013.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statamants described above, management is also responsibie for ensuring that the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance
with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are applied in an effectiva

way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversseing the financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the entity monitors compliance with relevant
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legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems ars
in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment,

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatemant, whethaer due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions of
Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Arficle
229(7) of the Consfitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect a material
misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion aboul whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance
with the authorities that govern themn, and that public resources are applied in an effective
way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the
audit report in compliance with Arlicle 229(7) of the Constitution,

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectivenass of
internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in accordance
with the provisions of Section 7 (1) (a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit
report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitulion. My consideration of the intemal
control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material
weaknesses under the I1S5Als. A material weakness is a condilion in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal contral components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be
matearial in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected
within a tmely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect misstatements
and instances of non compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of pffectiveness o
future periods are subject lo the risk thal controls may become inadequaté: because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures
may detariorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
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one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the ovemde of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncertainty
axists related to events or condilions that may cast significant doubt on the universily's
ability to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required
to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit reporl. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Egerton University to cease to sustain s
SenviCes.,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Egerton University to express an opinion on the financial

statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the crcumsiances.

| communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intemal controls that are identified during the audit.

| also provide management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

L.

FCPA Edward R. O. Ouko, CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Mairobi

14 March 2019

Eeport of the Aisdirer-General on e Finorciel Satementy of Egerton Universing for dhe vewur endeed 30 duae 2018
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financiel Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018 &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 ' |
Particalars Notes |
2016-2017
FKsh=. f ]
Roveane fron Won-Fxchaoge Transactions '
Gok Recurent Capitation Cirant & [a) 2. TaR 223 209 -
Bes=arch & Extension Income 7 34T BT 665 I
Cither Revenus from Mon-Exchange Transactons 8 EATI095
CESA AR ACE 2 Incomes o D446, TR4
HACTF TAGDEY lucome 1 14 432 13
Tepemeo [neome for the pariod 3z I55 615 106 |
Total Revenus fron Non-Exchange Transactions [ 2205263 471
Bevepne fron Exchange Transactions d
Tuition and Felsted Fess 1L I §,400 S l6, 038
Other Sendices Rendered 12 151384933
Interest Income 13 11 598 503
1.572 890 474
Total Revenoe M
Expenditusre
Staff Costs L4 3,113 E99 &64E
Council Expenses 15 20,530, 297
Admimistratve and Central Services L& B4 ETH.113
Repars and MMamtenance Expenscs 17 98 L34 368
Academic Departments Expenses 18 £33 496 868
Rezearch & Extension Expenses j £ 333 798,324
Eapenses-1L0 lnpins I 24,824,225
Depreciaton Expenass 21 150,880,491
CESAANM ACE 2 Expences zI Qa6 Tos
MCF TAGDEY Expenses 23 i4.432, 913
Tegemes Expenses for the penod 3z | 250 365 674
S.440.425 419
Onher Gams/{Losses)
Gain on Bevaluabon Investment. Shares 47, 321
(Decrcase)merease m Provision for bad debts Tk S 15 ; TEA3E2
Gain on Foreign Exchange v k B.965.0348
Gate/(Lots) on biolagical Assers e 13,839,777
T o 23,434,416
L] i
Doficit for the Poried |
e
Attributable to; -
Chwniers of the controlling eriity na 3
Setms.
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Fgevten Universfoe Anoaad Repart and Fioeactel Stafemanes for the var coed S0tk feee 2008

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS -"|.T31H'.'-"HL 2013

Partirulars Nohen
07 IE ela- 2ol
Kalia. N Kot
ASSETS
Currest 3
Cazh w Bouk and o Hand 2503 BHE 56 238 A3 378 116
Cofeingers Depost ISl 511, 00 {106 00 00
Recerabiss from Exchange Transactomns 26 (ad JGE0,028 200 1 eTE TR
Eecenvabies fromn Non-Exchangs Transactions 26 0(c) - 0.5
hnverores i $3I58.560 ] Bed-HDT
Agricongal Assats Fd. 25083375 35 840747
1,720,241 970 | 1.724,455,268
Soom Curret Assers
Property, Plam Equgrmese 128 {a) ) ﬂ!ﬂﬁ.ﬁ! E{iﬂ 4,761 71304
[m=stamenty fan _wﬂﬂi aT8am
5,244,276 500 4,761,958,71]
Tatal Assete 6964515471 || ° 6 436.476,99% |
LIABILITIES
Curtenl Liabilities LA
Negative Cash Balances 1850 ) 59,748,161 181,780,778
Trade and Cither Payahles Al (a) Lda2 2T 4 847,173,380
Brenvisions and Arcminh 31 M ﬂ:’.ﬁﬁ.ﬂ'u 17047123
Dieferrad Incoms i) 423, 343,765 06 |
3,112156450 L813.216.586
Tatal Liahildies Wﬂ,m A13216 345
el Assers 38421322021 4,673 260,453
General fund j 4310588316 4410 433 074
Acoummminted SurplayDefict) (468,166 305) 550,629,379
Total Caprtal and Liabilities 3 842372 0F1 A ETI IR0 450
1 p— i 'l:
B 475 PO s W o ol r ::i
Prof. Rose A, XMwomya, FHD EF-i X "ﬂfqn Mr. Joshua N. Diienc
Vieg Chancelior Ag. Finance Olicer Chairmian, Universine Csineil
ICPAK Member Na. 758
Dhaie: Drate: Date:
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the vear ended 30k Tune 2008

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 .JUNE 2018

7 |
Particulars Note ! Ca|||t.;l Reserves | Rovenue Ressrves Tuadal
- = = Kahs, Kals. Hoslis,
Al Jubv 1, 3014 3.876.767.538 LO=3163.007 | 4,02003] 445
Capaal Grams &) 145,663 534 [£5 653 338
Pover vear Adpustrments 16,703,330 1&.':DJ-§3&J
Dreficit from operatons (ehlZ B3R0%8) (45538 048
Al June 30, 20017 4,022 430,074 G082 3TD | 4.672,260,453
At Juby 1, 2017 £, 022.431.074 G50, 820,370 | 4 673 260 453
Capital Grants & (k) 288 | 57253 285 |57252
R&E+Reserves Tramsferred to Deferred Incorae " (191,027.449) -:19|_.{+3?_.¢4~:r1
Dheficit from operations (P2E,068 230)( (925,008,236
At June-30, 2018 { . 4310588320 (468.260,300)| 3842322021
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— Egerton University Annunl Report and Fimancial Statemenis for the year ended 30tk June 2008
- S
) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
mn
| Particulars woles
2016-2017
1 Kshs.
e Operating Activities
Deficit for the year (448,835,058}
Adjustments for
- Depreciation 21 150,380,491
Admstments i Reserves for prior years items 46,503,530
Movemernt m Provisions for the year Il 87.051.328
r MMovement in Deffered Income for the vear 31 (c) 149,866,303
{ | (Gain)Loss on Revaluation of Shares 24 {47221}
Investment Income 13 (11,598,500}
[nterest Expense 16 16,563 851
(9,618,282)
Changes in Working Capiral
| ' (IncreaseyDecrease in Biological Assets 28 (13,839,777}
{mcrease YDecrease m Recervables 16 (a) 33,527,395
| , (Increase)Decrease in Inventories 17 25,157,487
Increase{Decreass) I Pavables 3l ia) 80,947,188
145,792,203
| || Cash Generated lrom Operations 136,174,011
gl L
Investing Activities 't'J':::._'! ﬁ"-.l‘:-:- ;;-
Hl-l'
i Imterezt Bank Charges Paid 16 (16,563, 851)
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equpment 21(n) {248,655.500)
Loan to E. U7 Invesmment Company an
R & E Reserves Transferred to Deferred Income .
Interest earned from Invesoments 16 11,598 506
' (253,620,8345)
| Financing Activities
[ Gol Capital Grants & (b 143,663,535
N Net Cash from Financing Activities 145,663,536
L] Net Increase{(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,216,702
1 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the start of the perod 3173977.635
L
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Close of thepeniod 25 (a) 402,194,337
L
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Siaiements for the year ended 30th Tune 2008

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL

AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2013

Note| Original Bedpel| | Adjesrmenty Fiesd Binckger Fuarkaet I Ahual oa Portamuace
Partlculars Cunnlaiive to date || Companible basls || Difervace
BT e Amian [T 6470014 LT3 MWETABLE WI0EE
Kxhs [ T8 K, | Kkt T Kehs.
|
Eevenus from ¥on-Exchaage Tramecines
{okl Rerurent Capiation. Grame B 2I00Ese [ 051 834 it Ligz e L1 134060 §AET 156 300 :
Reserch & Eniension Tacome-Mas campn | = 270 13 49 : T 191448 SHiLA 40 BEHA 113076
ey Eevesee from Yoo Encumae Trazsacios ; 12 8258
CECAAL ACE % AN EBOMLON | 0 B0 51551 ALY
AT TAGDEY 3 1,15 7] = RIS 051500 MWL §EEAN
Tepemen Income n IR - agnameny | 58110 (782 18RS [
Tetd Bieveuns fon Yaw Exchange Transariicas TARIITE MG || 1LDELAM ST LRELBEDET] | 3020 900 571 LTAEALEOTY (L ST A%
el
Tision o Bebted Fees 11 kTR il L LINERT A 1331401615 | LR
(Hasr Serices Feadarvdd 13 HE2H 110 ey p -t Bl 142 533370 { i BT N
1AL 66 LEL3156365 1613, 186355 LA™ BR[| (1,150.008 48T
Total Hevenae Srennio || LLEET || 4,564.126004 126097 sangmeme || nasienesl
Exgeaditery | |
§19fF Caery TR A I, LIE6E, 191 4 28951 554 L TR spammam ||z
Conned Expreaes 15 14,000,300 L4 HEITR MENS8ER) MM T
Aderrtve i Ol Svies 16 IR0 aA118M 305 BALIEL T FLL A 1520538
Tepairs andf Mamarnance Coperses I £ 150 TR EA ER AR N §TAL17 (117 535
Aoz Degormens B, 15 §K1534 008 {147 .y e B2 549 4 TH A ILATEANT
Festarch & Erension Dapesses » 24151 = ML RS A5 55008 58
Expersses: BL lopuas b #5,500.000 LHLIsE | ML #4258 MR T
Sepreciaton Expesser 1 438000 {6281 4080 409 CTETECEY | LT
CESAAM ACE ? Experay 11 0300, 6 : BB 000 T L) Lrt) o
MCF TAGDIV Drgemses 1] Fp T LA 3,048 14 b BT 236817 £S5 A
Tegenses Expense 1 a4 T : 15 ERAT WEISEAT 18] 26400 (ABIE )
Total Exgeadivare sarlamast] | 1oTanis £,199.353,30] EI0LY || a045.5a0m00 || 20150077
Othir [
Cntey gats{Lases) PR Tl AT el
. : 4,768, EE i, 45,605
Srpies {Deflcr) fom Rararran Dusget HA11220T4 1AL 2, 741544 || 4,747,385 | 938,06, 330 | [1d4al,1%, 1533
Gial, Dlevelapenant Grast dib] LTI 131120 M L5241 1 5la 82
[ 1prat Expen bty 1 L LA B BT 451,400 7 AM045E0 18150 457
| .
Deficat or the Persd gﬁj [ | s A8 || (LALEM1AET]) (LEILOYE 204
| | .

Notes on the Budget

a. The differences between actual and budgeted amounts are within reasonable limits
b. The differences between the original and the revised budget were due to reallocations

within the same total budget.
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Eperton University is established by and derives its authority and accountability from
Universities Act Ne 42 of 2012, The University is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya
and is domiciled in Kenya, The University’s principal activitics are outlined on page 3.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated
otherwise. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Seclor
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions, It also requires
management o exercise judgement in the process of applying the University’s accounting
policies.

The financial statements have been prepared and presenied in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the University. The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the PFM Act and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

The accounting palicies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. The financial statements are
prepared on accrual basis.

The Annual Report and Financial Statements for period ended 30th June 2017 and 2018 for

Centre’ of Excellence in Sustainable Agriculture and Agribusiness Management (CESAAM) have
been presented separately for audit purpose. However, the same have been consolidated in these

Financial Statements.
1. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i. Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year

ended 30 June 2018
| Standard Impact

| TPSAS 39: | Applicable: 1" January 2018
Employee | The objective 1o issue [PSAS 39 was to create convergence to changes in
Benefits IAS 19 Emplovee benefits, The IPSASB needed to create convergence of
IPSAS 25 to the amendments done to IAS 19, The main objective 1s to
ensure accurate information relating to pension habilities arising from the
‘ defined benefit scheme by doing away with the corridor approach.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Continued)

ii. MNew and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yvet effective in the
vear ended 30 June 2018

Standard . | Effective date and impaet: .

| IPSAS 40: Public Applicable: 1* January 2019;

| Sector Combinations | The standard covers public sector combinations arising from exchange
transactions in which case they are treated similarly with [FRS
J{opplicable to acquisitions only) Business combinations and
combinations arsing from non-exchange transactions which are
covered purely under Public Sector combinations as amalgamations,

The University does not have any business combinations arising from
non-gxchange transactions and therefore the standard does not apply.

1ii. Early adoption of standards

The University did not carly —adopt any new or amended standards in year 20138,

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Revenue Hecognition
i) Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay ‘
the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue.

Other non-exchange. revenues are recognized when it 15 probable that the fulure economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the University and the fair
value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from ather Government Entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govermment entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on oblaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the
transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
related to the assct will flow to the University and can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b} Revenue Recognition
i) Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Rendering of Services & Feex

The University recognizes revenues from fees when the event occurs and the asset recognition
crileria are met.

The University recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference 1o the stage of
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
-:ump]éti-:m is measured by reference w labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total

estimated labour hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only 1w the
extent that the expenses incurmed are recoverable.

Sale of Guods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usvally on delivery of the goods and when the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or

service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the University.

Tureresr ncome

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest
income cach period.

Rental Income

Rental income arising {rom operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Eduecation”
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b) Budget Information

The original budget for FY 2017-2018 was approved by the National Assembly on 24 May
2017. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional
appropriations are added to the original budget by the University upon receiving the respective
approvals in order 1o conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the University recorded additional
appropriations of Kshs 348,095 280 on the 2017-2018 budget following the University's Council
approval,

The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are
presented in a single statement to determine the needs of the University, As a resull of the
adoption of the acerual basis for budgeting purposes, there are no basis, timing or University
differences that would require reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the
amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts.

) Taxes
The University is tax exempt as per the Income Tax Act, 2014,

d) Property, Plant and Equipment

All property. plamt and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, Cost includes expenditure that 15 directly attributable to the acquisition of the
iterms, When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the University recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrving amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit
as incurred. Where an assel is scquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal
consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life. Depreciation on other property is
charged so as to write off the assets dunng their estimated useful life, using the strmght- line
method. Assets acquired during the year attract full depreciation charge.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

dy ‘' Property, Plant and Equipment {Continued)

The annual rates used are: -

Buildings - 2.5%
Machinery & equipmen - 20%
Fumniture & fittings - 12.5%
Dimiry equipment / plant / tractors - 104
Motor vehicles - 25%
Library books - 2094
Computers and Applances . 33.3%
) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recopnized at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred.  The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as
either finite or indefinite,

fi  Research and Development Costs

The University expenses research costs as incurred, Development costs on an individual project
are recognized as intangible asseis when the Liniversity can demonstrate:

. The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale

. Its intention 10 complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

. How the asset will generate future cconomic benefits or service potential

. The availability of resources to complete the asser

. The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development
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Egerton University Annual Repors and Financial Statements for the vear ended 3thh Juna 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |
] Rescarch and Development Costs (Continued )

Following initial recognition of an nsset, the asset is caried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the penod of
expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impaimment
annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

#)  Financial Instruments
Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assels, as appropriate.
The University determines the classification of its financial assets at mitial recogmition.

Loans and Receivables

Louns and receivables are non-derivative financial asscts with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measurkd at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment,
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the surplus or deficit,

Hedd-ro-Maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as held to maturity when the University has the positive intention and ability to hold 1t
to maturity, After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
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the effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or
deficit,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g} Financial Instruments {Continued)

Tmpairment of Financial Asvets

The University assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
acget is impaired. A financial asset or a University of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred *loss evem’) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the University of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators: .

. The debtors or an University of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty

. Defauli or delinguency in interest or principal payments

. The probability that debtors will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization

. Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated futuré cash flows (eg.

changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial Liahilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial labilities at fair
value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The University
determines the classification of 11s financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs,

hy Ioventories
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[nventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions {for no ¢ost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the ventory 15
is fair value at the date of acquisition,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
hy  Inventories (Continued)

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,
as follows:

. Raw materiald; purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

. Finished goods and work in progress; cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nomingal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement
cosl.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or
distribution. Inventories are recognized as on expense when deployed for utilization or
consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the University.

i) Agricultural Assets

Agricultural activity is the management by the University of the biclogical transformation and
harvest of hiological assets. Biological Asset is a living animal or plant. There are three groups
of agricultural assets: -

Agricultural Produce: Is the harvested product of the University’s biological assets.

Bearer Biologieal Assets: Are those that are used repeatedly or continuously for more than one
vear in an agricultural activity e.g. breeding stocks (including fish and poultry), dairy animals,
and sheep
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Consumable Biological Assets: Are those that are held for harvesl as agricultural produce such
as animals and plants for one-time use e.p, beef animals, fish in farms, crops such as maize and

wheat.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h) .-igrjculmrﬂt Assets (Continued)

Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and at each reporting date at its value less
costs to sell except where fair value cannot be measured reliably. In such case the biological
asset shall be measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss as per
IPSAS 27,

i}y Provisions

Frovizions are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
i result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of

the amount of the obligation.

Where the University expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separatc asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain,

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net
of any reimbursement.

Contingent Linhifities

The University does nol recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibifity of an outllow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contfagent Assels

The University does not recognize a contingent assetl, but discloses details of a possible asset
whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mone uncertain
future events not whaolly within the control of the University in the notes to the financial
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statements, Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial swtements. IF it has become virtually certain that an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured
reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period

in which the change occurs.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
iy Provisions {(Continued)

Provision for bad debis

A general provision for bad and doubtful debts is provided for at the year-end at 1% of
outstanding general and student debiors.

k)  Nature and Description of Capital Reserves

The University has a capital reserve which represerts the government's interest in the net
asgets/equity of the university and is a combination of contributed capital by the gevernment and
the aggregate of the University's accumulated surpluses or deficits and reserves that reflect the

net assets/equity attributable to the University’s operations.

I}  Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates .

The University recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The
effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
impractical.

m) Emplovee Benefits

Retirement Benefit Plans

The University provides retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans are
post emplovment benefit plans under which the University pays fixed contributions into &
separaie trustee administered fund, and will have no legal or consiructive obligation 1o pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all emplovee beénefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions 1o the fund
obligaticns for the payment of retirement benefits are charged agamnst income m the year in
which they become payable,
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Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method
basis, Delicits identified are recovered through lump sum payiments or increased future
contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump
sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

m) Emplovee Benefits (Continued)

The University also contributes to the National Social Security Fund (NSSF) for staf in grade [
to IV. The University’s obligations under this scheme are limited to specific contributions
legistated from time to time, and are currently limited t0 a maximum of KSh 200 per employee
per month while the employer contributes a similar per month, The University’s obligation to
stafT retirement benefit schemes are charged to the statement of the financial performance in the

vear to which they relate,
n)  Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the
date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported
at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.
Exchange differences arising from the settlement of ereditors, or from the reporting of creditors
at rotes different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period. are
recognized as income or expenses in the penod in which they anse,

o)  Related Parties

The University regards a related party as a person or an University with the ability o exer
control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Umiversity, or vice
versa. Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the council

members and senior managers.
p)  Service Concession Arrangements

The University analvses all aspecis of service concession armmangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,
where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the University recognizes thal asse
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when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide topether
with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than
‘whole-of-life” assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise — any

significant residusl interest in the asset at the end of the arrangement.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

pl Service Concession Arrangements (Continued) p

Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value, To the exient that an asset has been
recognized, the University also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash
consideration paid or received.

q) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call
and highly liguid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily
convertible to known smounts of cash and are subject 1o insignificant risk of changes in value.
Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenva and at various
commercial banks at the end of the financial year, For the purposes of these financial statements,
cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised
public officers andfor institutions which were not surrendered or sccounted for at the end of the

financial year,

ri  Comparative Figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

5)  Subsequent Events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with » significant impact on the
financial statements for the vear ended June 30, 2018,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGM ENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Universitys financial stalements in conformity with [PSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics, at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment 1o the carryving amount of the asset or liability

affected in future periods.

Extimates and Assumprions

The kev assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial vear, are described below, The
University based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
linancial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances ansing beyond the
control of the University. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. [PSAS
1.140

Useful Lives and Residual Values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

. . The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the University

. The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

. The nature of the processes in which the asset is deploved

. Availability of funding to replace the assel

. Changes in the market in relation to the asset
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S5 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
{Continued)

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the mlformation
available, Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 27,

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle
the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is
miaterial,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 6 (a) Income - GoK Recurrent Capitation Grants g -
2016-2017
Particulars Kahs. N
July 234937992 )
August 234,937,992
September 234,937,592
October ; 234,937,592
November 234 937,992
December 234,937,992
Tanuary 214,647,749
February 234,537,992
March 2314937992
April 234,937 992
Mav 234,937,992
June 214,647,700
Total GoK Recurrent Grants 1,768,155.899
MWote 6 (1) Income-GoK Development Grants
Particulars '
2016-2017
Kshs.
September 19.438 545
October =
December 19,438 545
March 32176646
April 18,948,732
May 23,727,235
June ?lLQESJEHE
Total GoK Development Grants 145,663,536

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 6 (¢) Transfers from the Miniztrv of Education

Amount recognized to
Statement of Amount
Baok Statement| Comprebensive recogmised in the
Date Income Reserves 1016-2017
KShs EShs EShs
3-hal-17 347.018 887 35 £3
11-Jul-17 31,933,833.000 31,933,833.00500
v 24-Jul-17 379,722 238.00 ‘
21-Aug-17 175 046 008 .00
08-3ep-17 175,046,008 00
14-Oct-17 175,046,007.00
30-Non-17 175,046 008 00
I0-Mow-17 84.280,922.00
1-Dec-17 147 872,283.00
01-Dec-17 175,046.008.00
02-Jan-18/ 29 574,457.00
02-Jan-18] 1 75,046,007.00
23-Feh-18 175,046,008.00
23-Feh-18 29574 457 .00
13-Mar-18 174,046,008 00
13-Mar-18 29 874 457.00
09-Apr-18 28.574,437.00
09-Ape-18 175,046,007.00
03-May-18 175,046,008 00
07 -Jun-18 29 574 457,00
11-Jum-18 175,046,008.00
19-Jun-18 29,574,457.00|
20-Jun-18 203,876,330.00f
28-Jun-18 17%5.046.008.00
28-hn-18 29.574.457.00 _
Total 3,182,186,700.35) 320,091 085.00] 31,933,833700| 3470,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 7 : -Research & Extension Income h r
Particulars
2016-2017 '
Kshx. "
AICAD-FEOZ-Income 354 038 |
DAATDVERRE-BEQS -Income 17,120,236 )
Department of Defence-REFS-Income 73,826,600 -
Drvland Farming -REQT-Income 3.919.179 [
Economics Department-REJE-Tnconmne BO2.433
Fingerponds-RE10-Income -
Gt Shop-RE11 -Income 1,845,370
Gilobal Fund for TH-REL2- [ncome -
Globalte-RE 1 3-Income 1,453,658
Gresnhowses. RE 1d- [neome 5516 108
KAPE GERANTS-RELS-Inconue 4,260 405 |
Marwal Besources-BE20-locome i
NORAGIC-BEIT - Income 13831 875 |
O55REA Young Scholars-EE22-lncome 1,407 4350
PRA-FEI-Incodme 0,070
Research & Extension-BEIXS-[ncome 7,296,080
ROHSA Praject-REIT -Inootwe -
TAMOU 01C.RE29-Income 11,905,593
o 1,891,440
Vertisol Managemnt-RE34-Income 607,791
DSSREA Post-Doctoral-RE3T-Income 610,486
ECOLIVE Project-BEAD-[ncame 454 859
Wetland Ecosystem-RE4 1. [ncome I 484,340
Limnology-RE42-Incopme 10,643,917
ECO-HELB-RE43-Incomm= b 6,791,674
Global Fund-RE44-[ncome 21,203,325
Confucious [nstitate-RE43-Income 17,720,805
DOLLAR Account-RE46-Income 18,108,772
EURC Aceount-RE4T-Incorme 122 71L7T5
AERC Arcoumt.RESD-Incoma -
AGEC dollar Account.FEX]-Income $
AERC 2 Project - RES2-[ncome -
347,537 665
Note 8 1 - Other Non-Exchange Income
Aau Egerton Cross Couniry Income-WATN 2,782,520
Man Egerton Cross Country Income Moncash Sponsars 322,600
[nceme-Cnhier Incomes- Advertsing Income - Mam
Portners Féc. Grants -Drverheads Gronts{ Tegemeo) £,365,0973
8 475093

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 3 - CESAAM ACE 2
MNCOME-REE-CESAANM ACE 2 945 798
046,753
Note 10 : - MCF TAGDEY
Income - REE MCF TAGDEV 14432913
14432813
Total Non-Exchange locome 170,392 467
Note 11 : - Income-Tuition amd Related Fees
Partizmlars
216-2017
Kshs,
Application Fee 638827
Regsiation Fee 7,854,650
Student [D 33431349
Actaty Fees 12 365 600
Shudert mechead faz AT S0
Examistion Fee T0.212 100
Matenial Development 7967 000
(raduatios Fees 2 107 450
Library Fer 47,385 200
Tuice Fee 987 902,992
Tuitioe Fees- Bridpag Cows 5,404 950
Snudent Sapervision Fee B.065 400
Fizld Attachment fee 35,659 100
Student Laboeatary fee 24 419,060
Arademc Trascrints 55400
Centificate Stornge Charges 235 500
Student Damages Chimgss 5 557 ORR
Library Foe 237,748
Test & Vasanabon- NICC 1,140 000
Gowns Hire & Penidies 314,580
Creds Trancfers 2382140
Remarking & Retake 10,041 580
Sheet Comrses 7984 210
L0516

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Ninge 12 & - Iencoms-Orher Sernvices Hondered .
Particulbyrs
FOl6-2017 |
K=sh=.
Accomodation Fees-Halls 75.E81.39]1 1
Abmmni Membership Faex &, G600
Ambulsnces Fas £630
Bad Charges EE
Clinical Charges-medical 4,041, 7RI i
Consultnney Fees .
Comsubtation Foes AT 565
Diental Fees 273,370
Drugs 2516 480
Bizcelaneous Income 25607130
Hue of Cosferencs Facildti=s T4,045
Hire OF Furndnae 15,500 |
Houss Rent 12,007,503
Income fam Ansmal Healih degt 6218 ES0 -
Income from UT<15A B0, 142
Lab Test 2. 718034
Mlenle-catering 15, 554 S48
Photscopsding Clasges 12,450
Sale Of Bada T4, 730
Sale af Canle 23,500
Sale of Conmmeycial Goods %
Sale of Damry Products 5,801,923
Sale OH Eggs 241,980
Sale of Firewood 11,000
Sale OF Gones 18,000
% abs of Hoaticulnores 104,570
Sabe of Maire B0, ik
Sale CH Wik & Doy Products 2,474 492
Sale OF Pags 154, 700
Sale of Pork :
Sale O R abbits I S0
Sale OF Sheep 13,000
Lals of Sratiomery 1550045
Sale of Teat Books 67 599
Sale of Wheat B
Tadloring Income 1022977
Tenderng Charges 124,000
Income from OLUTE-[GU 1505 053
El=ctronic Stodio Income-MT0C = 00
Collsborative Colleges Income{ AICO & KIPC) B8, 500
Mormanry Income - TGL 3,450,900
Vistmg Grougs Levy- Mam 3,178,800
Ward Charges-1GUF " 1,038,544
Mmtemnity Fee-TGLT -
Insance Payrall deduction Commis=sion 2,620,308
Invzance Refimela R elates S0 O=l5
Vikitors Accomodation Chages F17,240
Electricty Charges 357,743

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Key-cutting Charges
Manpower Development Income
Sale of Tree Seadlings

Income fom Games

Hire of Laboratory facilities
Salary Fefimds/lieu of notice
Sale of beans

2,850
4 980,255
21,790

267,000
L.201.074

151.384,933

Note 13 ¢ - Interest Income

Farticulars

2016-2017
Eshs.,

Iuteresi Income Fixed Deposits
July

Aumest

Drecarnber

Jarmsy

39121859
670

G 666
7685547

MNote 14 ; - Seaff Cosrs

= 11,598,506

Note 14 (a} : - Key Management Persounel Remnperation

Particulars

10l6-2017
Hehs

Basic Salary
House Alowance

Dty Allowance

Adedical Allowanca

Entenaimment All

Professorial Allowance

Responsibhty Allowance

Phone Allowance

Call Allowance

Book JoumallCT ABowance
Damestc Servant Allowance

Hame Water And Elacticity Allowance
Mon User Car Allowance

Medical Exrransous Allow ance

Leme Allowance

INon Practice Allowance

55P Allowance

Pension Emplover Contribution

23,204,540
3,822,516
2,029 645

274,460
1.065.290
430,000
2,422,290
666,161

10,500
2,443,216
662 839
1.007.290

109052

2384 385
4,628 908

45375111

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

*Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is 150 90012008 Certified

63




Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the pear ended 30th June 2018

Mote L4 (B) - - Stall Personnoel Femnneration

FParticulars

2016-2017T

Kzhs.

Basic Salnry 1.382.100.999
Hanse Alswaners TAG OS2 T4T7
Dy Rsdc Eamamcous Allowaince G4 A1% 23]
L oinrmures Aloswane s L23.853 863
Mlectical Alowmce Ha,B35,7TA7
Hardship: Allcsvcanes 2,547 4320
Foennmerative Alowanss 32835416
Baske Salary Arrears >
Brintiinition Alsiamee 1,075,017
Man Pracuce Allowance 21,973,645
Enrermmirmneanr Alowance 1,515,120
Acctzg Allowane: 1,557 156
Professorial Allowesnce 6,724,247
Hesponsibilicy Allowanece 1. 516,161
Menpower Sl Education 133 647
Lesve Adlowassee 13,701,933
Specil Dhty Alowsmce 413, 73E
Undfirm Allowance 366 379
Ambulance Allowrance AR Tal
FPhone Alowance 1,684 077
Call Allowance 16 408 158
LEP Allowance 60,057,089
Book Jourmal/TCT Aloomnaece E 265,000
ME5F-Employer Conmibution 3,102,611
Pension- Employer Confributicn 222,150,537
Orverturse Anwouns -
Crratuleies E5,118.141
Hioanes Warer & Ebsctriciny G067 10
Dicanestic Servam 25 BOg
Man use of Car 10,3323
Top-Lip ABowance Q4g 528
Assiuants ABowanss 360,000
Medical Extramneous Allwance -hiam
Medical Risk Allowancs -
YVetermary Hisk Alowsnoe -Ivims
Might Travel -Librare staff
Pay in Beu of lemee davs
Passage and Baggage 1.0E2, 1860
Staff Trasdng Expences E.648 181
Crranduate Scholarsheps 5 0E7 200
S Ecfuc ation Fund Expenses B.252,610
Stafl Fees Wabres 1%, 634,200
Staft Unforms 4,733,380
MiTH Charges 1,184 500
Casuzl Labor Expenses 18478 230

A,068 624, 537
Tatal Sralff Costs J,IIE!HIIEI.']

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 15 ; - Council Expenses

Particalars

J016-2017
Kshs.

sittng Allowancas

Milzage Travel

Mleals

Accomodation

Training Expense
Chancellors Honorarmm
Chasrman's Honorarnen
Charmian's Phone Allowance

18,782,267
171,050
364,980

1,202,000

0,520,297

Note 16 : - Administration and Central Services Expenses

Pariculars

201 e-2017
Kshs.

Office Statonery -Main

Advertismg -Mam

Postage And Telepbone -Mam
Electricity & Water -Main

Oificial Entertarmment -Main
Coniracted Securily Services -Main
General Insurances - Properties -Ma
Swrategic Initative-ISC 22000/2001
Compater Stationery -Main

Audit Fees And Expenses -Main
Rent And Rates -Mam

Conference And Seminars -Mam
Stafl Subscription to Professional
University Subscription to Other Bo
News Papers, Journals & Videos -Mal
Shows & Exhibitions Expenses -Mam
Internet Services -Main

Orfice Running Expences -Main
Students Union Expenses-Mam
Computer Mamtenance -Main

Bank Charges , Ioterest & Comum -Main

5,083 401
11,946,680
£,073,847
117,808,940
529,732
39,089,236
59 149,201
5,917,710
4,373,495
§31.400
2436000
115,658,095
17,507,040
810,502
13,500 844
3,815,310
8,415,480
51,537,683
13,637,290
5 081,651
13,202,133
16 563 §5]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Cither Board Coweme - Jab, Fac, Dept
Cleaning And Sanitary Services -Mai
Strategic Infiatve General Mam
Fuoel & Gas Mam
Pubgcity -Mam
Open Days Expenses -Main
Awards & Prives-Mau Egerton Cross Country
Noacash expense-Man Egerton Cross Country
Other expenses-Mau Egerton Cross Couwtry
Taxes
Peformance Contract Service Delvery
Crade I-IV Retrement Benehit Scheme
Asset Taggng & Valaton Expenses
Emironmental Impact Assessmient
Dhsability Mainstreaming
Program Self Assessments
World Ploughing Contest

/orld Emaonmental Calebration
Adimem & Caateal- Students Medical Expenss
Traveling And Subs. Staff
Earernal Travelng
Staff Funerpls Expenses
Staff Hospitahzabos Expenses
Staff Sports Walfare -Mamn
Team Bubding Actrtizs - Mamn
Medical Supplies

9,028,844
58014 345
5,007,269
391247
15,306,915

679.000
322,600
3,501,757
722,560
2,850 821
5.998 B51
236,817
375,515
1,250,600
582 594
H“4.78

71,400 796
8113
2.973.720
113,279, 480
5,035,965
1,359,603
4122429

346,675,113

Note 17: - Repairs and Maintenance Expeases

Particalars

Equipmenats !
Motor Vehucle Repairs
Fencing

Water Supply & Sewerage
Buildings

Motor Vehicles - Foel And Oils

MIG-2017

Kshs.
633,438
11,991,753
18,129
5,291,039
271,250
37,445 566
22 873,143

08,524,368

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Nate 18 - Acadennc Departwents Expeases

Particulars

g7
Kshs,

Teachng Clams (Part Tame Lectmers)
Prming Aod Publsng

Teaching Materiads

(raduatios Expenses
School Based Expesses
Students Spors Expenses

Teaching Practioe & Arachment
Students Work Study Expenses
Academc Field Trps

Sparts (Later-Universtis)
Subsistence & Acoommodation -External Exammers
Students Registrabon Expenses
Shucleees Leadership Development Program Expenses
Post Graduate Practicum
Students [D Expenses

Teaching fenvices

Comeulam Revew

Quality Assurance Audit Arademse
E-L eamng Expenses
Student Affrs Fxpenses

Stodeat Attachmert

RMATH
34T
13094793
163,132
16,132,833
38310
1021688

eeeee

121470
16,958,037
1740
14,506,606
1062320
2 345,088
§3072
1278 390
1834030
13155
1565 80
3432206
e
12.530.193

513,49, 364

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 19 : - Research & Extension Expenses

Particulars

2016-2017
Kshs. B

AICAD-REQL-Expenses
DAADEBR-REDN:-Expenses
Department of Defence-FED6-Expenses
Drviand Farmung-RE(7-Expenses
Economics Department-RE0S - Expenses
Fogerponds-FE10-Expensas

Gift Shop-RE11-Expenses

Global Fund for TB-RE12-Expenses
Globalite-RE ] 3-Expenses
Greenhousas-RE14-Expenses

EAPP GRANTS-RE]8-Expenses
MNatural Resowrces-RE20-Expenses
NORAGIC-RE21-Expenses

OSSREA Young Scholars-RE2]-Expenses
PRA-RE23-Expenses

Research & Extension-RE25.Expenses
ROSA Project-RE27-Expenses
TAMOU 01C-RE29-Expenses
Training-RE3 3- Expenses

Verusel Managemnt-RE34-Expenses
OSSREA Post-Doctoral-RE37-Expenses
ECOLIVE Project-RE40-Expenses
Wetland Ecosvstem-RE4 1 -Expenses
Lmmalogy-FE42-Expentes
ECO-HELB-RE43-Expenses

Global Fund-RE44.Expenses
Confucious Institute-RE4 5-Expenses
DOLLAR Accommt-RE46-Expensss
EURO Account-RE47-Expenses
AERC Account-RE5)-Expensas
AGEC Dollar Account-RES]-Expenses
AERC 2 Project Account - RESZ -Expenses

815,458
15,819,372
40,238 430

1438745
415370
1671175
5,924,775
8 030
1,040,055
1,734 465
15,470,291
3,775,541
16,622,762
5 574,291
2677060
24,523 893
3,148,312
11,405,759
2553317
1,110,017
270209
3476747
2.628.762
9658724
8042170 ‘
5.820.261
11,892 681
28,283 §52
101,390,615

135,795,326

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 20: - IGU Expenses

Particulars
Traveling Aod Subsstence

Staff U'nefrms

Casusl Labor Expenses

Claaning Matenals

Office Runmg Fxpenses

Btk Chrges | Interest & Comm
Cleanre And Sarstary Services
Repars & Mamtenance - Equpoent
Moter Vehicke Repans
Repars & Mantenance - Fomiture
Mamfepance of Stasions

Teaching Clamns (Part Time Lectorers}
Teachmng Materials

Producticn [nguts
Purchase OF Farm Iiputs

Purchace Of Stationery For Resale
Funerad Home Expenses

Note 21: - Depreciation Expenses
Particalars

Braldngs-Egencn Baldegs

Plat & Maclisery-Darry Instinte machnery
Famshre

E quipeoests

Librzy Books

Matoe Vehicles

Computers & Software

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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162017
Kshs,

T34 145

1512746
161,121
14,080
85172
10,865,600
17300

10,00
12187176
2810851

3197351
4.804.422
585 468
1,513,511

54804 516

1016-2017
Bske

I
6,587.483
B 605,604

25 641 389

12428548

12,935 640

11318849

150,550,491




™

Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2018

Note 22 - - CESAAM ACE 1 Expenses .
Particulars

2016-2007

Kishs.
Travellng & Subsstence 3‘31.9'-']0
Bank Chasges ' o o7e
Promete Eegonal Research #54.816 -
Feoabnant & mterdews of stadents
Support contimmg Ph D). stadent
Stppont contmesng Mac, studesty
Shoet comrses in Agmc vale chain
Staff exchange Fellowchp
Facfitate presestafics i nbemational con
Retoakng werkshop foe vaff
Support Agri Enterprives
Support teams develop proposals 1
Procure master velicls
Hald an inception workshop
Mirketeng Cesseon Project and £ programs .
Crsanm sieering CommEles sub ¢ omumtees
Cespam s1aff packege (Salanes and wages)
Cesaam velucke wic & Travel subs, costs
Efective CESAAM secomianat -
Andit conducted -
ADB MOHEST- Dr Lias: Kaiuke -
Cesapm Dpsrabonal Expenses

848, 795

Note 23 : - MCF TAGDEV Expenses
Particulars

26-2007
Ksha,

Project Coardinator at Egerton University 3,956,601
Propect Assrctant at Eperion Uneversity 21364 617
Engash bnguage teacher at Egeston Undversity 152,849
Faculty release time &t Egerton Unfversiny 1,607,531
Interview Stadencs 532 460
Expents - Orentation
Cost of pablicising the Project sad ite scholsshin 122,764
Factation of Inkcages with mdustry and entrepr

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Sel gy progranie Ul 8 pogtne wiveritey
Linfversity meetmgs tn dissminale groject bessons
Moathly Seminars at the aarversities

Expense - Unneriity sdmission suppeet
Uversity fze s for endereraduate snsdents
Liniversy foes for postgradaste stodents
Service Fees for Tindaygraduate stodenty
Smudern Welare Costs

Curncshm sovses: pvents

Zeaft Loptops

Oifice firniure far the project offices
Useversay Praters

Expens= - otizer

Propram Debvery Foe

MCF Potato Seed Project Prof Kibe

MCF Potate Seed Graduate Stodents

MOF CASSAVA CARP+ - Prof M 5 Mudwa
MCF AGLEAD - Piaf. P Mshenga

16,656
95017

TEL5ME
Last e

2,103,114

336109
a00Th
270 157
5T

14431911

Note 148 Oiber (GalnslLossed

Particalars

r0l6-2m 7
Kxh=.

(rain (Loss) on Revalaatbon lavestueat-Shares

Mas Canpis-Bad Debas wicl-(lecrease} Decrease i Provdsion
Mairohi Campas- Bad Debis w'off-(Tnerease) Decrease 0 Prevision
1GUs-Bad Debas wiof-{Increse i Decrenss o Provision

F& E-Bad Debas wial-(crease v Decrease 1 Provison

Malaury Camyurs-Bad Diebts woff-(Increase) Decrease in Provisian
Baringo Campus-Bad Debts wiol{Increase} Decrease in Provisica
Fesagin-Bad Dhebts wiof-(noresse) Decrease m Prowsao

Bad Debts wioff- (Ioceease)Docrease iv Pravision

Main Cempus Dollars- Gain (Loss) on FOREX

Dol {3am Ilnu} oo FOREX

EURDs- Gak {Loss) oo FOREX

Dollars- Giain (I 355) on FOREX

DhoBars- Gamn (Lossh on FOREX

Giain {Less) on FOREX

M Cappus -Fan/(Loss) on bologeal Assets
M3Ua-Gram'{Loss) an biologital Assets

B E-Gan{loss) oo i:-l:b# HAsues

Gain/{Loss) ou biokogical Assets

47121

405,677
§8.239
{4,990y

152614
58 441
77,921
(6,520

741,381

300 564
1633390
T OE0 IR

703036

10,000
13285477
563 300

13.830.777

13,434 416
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Mote 33 {a) ¢ - Cash in Haod asd n Bank
Particulars
162017
hshs.
Bank balances
M - Bank Balances 0595234
Namrobi City Campes - Bank Balasess -
1GUs - Bank Balances 21.426,739
Reszasch & Extensica Hask Babeoss I1BBES97T
Nakura Town Camgpus College - Bank Balances 10,565,146
Barmgo Campirt - Bank Bafances 49,158
Ecarss - Bank Baiances 541,817
Tegemeas Bank Balances 188,97] 631
Total Bagk Balances 303,771,502
Petty Cash
M - Cash In Hand . J23.451
Warobi City Campus - Cash [n Hand -
I5Us - Cash [n Hand 65084
Total Cash In Hamd 203,614
Tatal Cash in Bask and is Hand 593,975 1146
Note 25 (b) - Contngent Deposits
Partiulars
0162017
Kshs.
Stall Mortgage Scheme
ECB Bank 30,000,600
Tatal Foced Deposits 30,000,110
Note 15 (r) - Negative Cashbosk Balances
Particulars
2016-2017
Kahe,
Main - Negattve Bank Balances 152,354 081
Narobs City Camguss - Negatve Bank Balances 11,962,130
HGl's - Negathve Bank Balances 14,066,516
Malomu Town CC - Negative Bank Balances 63,368,072
241,780,778
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 401,194,337
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25 (d) Denailed Analveis of Bank Balances as at 3h June 2018

Fimapcial Institetion Aceount No 200624017
Kshs,
1 Correnr Accownt
a} Barclays Bauk of Kenuyva
EL' Fees Account FT129 1 DS 1,250 164
Sab- moal 11:59115“
b} Co-operative Baok of Keaya
ELT Man Cammpins. mocount 1129025576700 E682674
ELT Mukawro Town Crngaus 1129025576701 5,773,304
EL! Global Fund Q113502557 6T00 2077
MCF Tagdev D21 2E0255T6T00 [4 164 268
Sub- total ' 17,465,156
c} Kenya Commercial Bank
E U Endowment Fund A'C 11058250584 48, 7E5.051
E WV AICD Fees Collection 1101809570 g2 1585
E U Devalapment Aceaumnt 11D15076E] 250,835
Egerton Universmye Paving Accomar 1101906812 2,891,715
E 1 Fees Aceount 1101910894 2994 24
E I Howgse Bent 1108044055 Q34,262
E U Fees Callection Account L IORSE0703 8626717
E U Banngo Campns L137208518 a5 228
EVE- Leaming Avcowmt 1101853580 1.075317
Eperton University 1137200542 2296719
Egerton Univ N Town Campras 1101505374 1502 942
E U MNairobi City Fees 1IR1FaTEL | 1,450,748
Egerton Usieersiy MCC AT FI37300877) 625 708
Egerron Univezsity Onverhead Account 1101908718 954,550
E U Funeral Heme Account 1101893794 365 744
Eusacs Catenng Account 1101862930 116,369
Eperion Universiny Mk Account 11001510429 933,163
Egerton Ui Students Accom C Serv 1101862637 374,315
Egerton Ulnnersiny Muotrifion Acconnt 1101808204 1,195,361
Egenon U Manral Besources Depar 1101913614) 1,249, 151
Egerton ke (hute 1101847530 S1z070
Bookshop 1101908033 E00,T32
Egerton Unbrersity Knit Tadoring HIQ1ERESID Q44 144
Eg=ron Universiny Tamon Famn 1101910ES Bl
AlICAD 1101846704 Bl e L 2384683
EHR Projeci 1101911786 AT DT 7,225,080
DD Praject 11019140258 1| 1.522.6%3
Dhrdend Fanming 1101911964 339,322
Egerion University Economic Dheps [101893370F 2400932
Fingerponds Project 1101803547 014,574
it Shogp 1101912499 2874604

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Fimnsckal Institurion Account Mo 2016-2007

Kshs. [l
£) Beava Commereial Bank E
Hgenos Univ Biochams=ny Deprt 1101854197 J18.53]
Giobakte Proj=ct HOIg47T19 7135 240 "
Oresphonses Project 110EE46a37 2923, 165
BEAPp 110LES2T4E3 13,351,185
ADSP 1I01RT3EEE 850 axs
Moragsee Peoject 1101850594 F,746, T03 1
Dizsrea Project 1H0LES549T 7667 5324 |
Partic iral Project 101911336 4,812,741 '
R&E Prajece L1015 T51% 17,384 803
EL Rasa Prajses TIDIES473% 2.314.519 1
Ta Mow 110l gag00s 5332,749
EL Cesaam Project FLE40S034 T 112,551,553
Traming Project 01913152 1,171,636
Versitl 1101911654 6,363,337
(Farea Poa Doc Project 1131858742 4,513 854
Ecolive Pragpsct 1112022317 1,673,971
LEnmnology Project 1114469307 £, 714, 208
Wesland Ecosyeiem 11144687 4,930, 525
Ecoheslrh 1118554132 3 01230,047
A Praject 1137200553 10,758,170
Comfischie [ntinge 1138143836 1932104
'S Diollar AAC 1132129737 33047 517
Biso A0l 11335680 44,374,277
AFRC Project Accomnt 110793349149 2. 713,514
EU AQGEC Dol 11E1E810220 2408 540
Smh- fotal 389,66 ) 056
dlp Manional Baonk of Kenyva
Eperion Univeruty PAMENIDP 100304 3EER00 249874
Egertvn Usvevsity Tegemens [nstinre - AGERA Q2003005 240200 s 155287 359
Egerion Umversity Tegemeo Insdute Q1002003240200 o 1 9 a3

3 9T 137 447,157

) NIC Bank :
Egerion Uiy, Tegemeo TAMPA 11 3083914
Egerton University A'DC Tegemes TARRA 3138542
Egertcoy Unnversity-Tegemen s TAPRA [T 19,960,618
Bgertem University-Teg=meo Instture 1Rl TE5811 18,450,050
Egertean Unbversity-Tegemeo Inst- RFCCP G032,210
Egemean Ubversity- Tegemeo [nst- KESP LX)

48,955,298
i Stafll mortpage
Conigent Dreposty -Srall Mosmgags
Sub- toral
3 Clank in Hanl
Wioro Camgpis 1101906812 il 133,431
MNarobd ity Coampuas 11372085597 1% 74,
G 1107562920 B318 55 EE3
Bersgs Cosguas 1137200518 14 283
Suls- total ' 203,614
Cirand Total  GENBIG 448 665,191,575
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Nate 26 (a) : - Recemvables from Exchasge Teawsaction

Parteculars
2016-2007
Kshs.
Cratetamcing [prast 93,683,051
Salery Advmnce Stall 70,000
Studend Diebbors T4 583802
Gremeral Debioss 1,416,830
Internal Debrors 11,593 f20
EU. Imesoment Co. Lid {45 400,000
[INTER-BANK TRANSFERS .
DUE FROM GOVERNMENT(Caps 31,931 813
Pavroll Becenables
Deposits E A O Cylidars 61,800
Deposits KPL CO Led BS1 325
Rent Deposts 10,215,150
Deposits NAWASCOLNTCC 20060
1,010,124,561
Note 26 (b) :- Provisions for Bad Delbis
Particnlars
: nle-2017
K=,
Provisions Mam Campas 5,315,854
Prowizions Narobd City Campus 066,929
Provisions [GLs 5410
Pronsions Nakmr Town Campus TaLET?
Prenisioes Baringo Cangis 109 444
Pronzsans Ecanps 35,3484
7,153 681
Ket Recercables from Exchanze Transaction | 102975178
Note 16 {c) : - Receivables from Neo-Exchange Trausaction
Particalars
2016-2017
Kshas.
Cumrent Assaes.General Debeoes-MawEaenon Croas Coutry 0.8
Total Receivables 1003 125,998

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 27 = - loventories

Particulars

Irrventon=s-Stocks Cenlral & Substores
Irventomes - Stocks Stationery
[rventomies-Stocks Cleanmg Materials
Imventories-Stocks Consumables
Inventogies-Shop stock-IGU

Note 25 .@._E'inlhnllﬂﬂth

Nate 15 (a) :- Biological Assets - Bearer Assets

Particalars

Livestock TDU-IGU

Livestock Kenyata Campus-[GU
Security Dogs-Main

Livestock Chemeron Field Station

Note 28 () :- Consamable Assets

Particulars

Crops TDU-IGU
Crops Kenyarta Campus

Tatal Agricultural Asseds

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is IS0 9001:2008 Certified

2016-2017

Kzhs,

10,129,375
9347 361
48,250
19,819,108
2,601,314

41,946 407

2016-2007

Kshs

30,268,600
3,260,000
140,000
1,772,800

35 441,400

2016-2017

kxhe,

63,015
36,332
99,347

35,540,747

78
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 9 b)- Wikl Frogrs ;
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Egerion University Annual Report and Financial Statements for .I‘.ﬁe;ear entded F0th Frene 2018

..I Mate M- lavestnents
Partheulars
- 20163017
Eshs.
| Kz Advays- Orcinary Shares- 52468- 275457
| E L. vestmeent Company
YIS AST
- Neote 11 (a} = Trade and Other Payables
Particolars
216-2017
. Fshs.
Payvall Payables 161,575 269
Trade Credars 199,363,153
Pavable Clesing A°C & 0] 756
Internal Cradiors- N E60. 295
Taxes-Witholdng Tax Pavable 1 330 064
Taxes-Vae Added Tax (VAT] Pavable 6,506 179
Onher Studenss Casstian Money &4 777,040
Cther Students Uniom Fees 646,058
Othier CDF Cleariog afc &016413
Other HELB Clexing a'c £ 230040
Otker Other Spoesors Cleaing a 13,359,865
Other Ahon Fees-NMam 10,371, 304)
Undentfoed Beank Degosits - Mam 23.900,130
Orher AGEC Dollar Cleanng A'c 2353 612
Other AERC Project Clearing Ae 2713514
ther Pavables-CUE Charges
Othier Payables- KUCCPS Charges
Drze wo Contractors -
Student Prepad fees 145,421 279
837173 550
MNare 31 (b ¢ Acerusls and Provisions
Partbculars
2e16-2007
| Bk,
| Aceruab Main Carpus 64,931 990
Aserosk Tscobi Ciey Cartigni 111,907,000
| Actroal Nalawrg Town Camupiss §50 098,133
{ ] Accnzals Baringo Campos 14 58 )
7457 122
L)
1] “Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
b Eperton University is [50 9001 ;2008 Certificd
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) .

Note 31 (¢} - Deffered Income

Particolars

H1é-2017
Kshs.

Deferrad Incoms - NCC

Deferred Income Tegemen

AICAD Deferred Incomes REE

EHE. Progect Dieferred Incoms REE
Dirvand Farsing Defered ncomes BEE
Economic Dept Defered Incomes RAR
Fmperponds Project Defered [ocomes REE
Biochemistry Dept Deferved [ncomes REE
{(Hobatte Prosect Deferred Incomes R&E
Oresnhousas Project Deferred Incomes REE
FAPP Dieferred [noomes REE

ADSE Deferred Incomes R&E

Moragne Project Deferred [ncomes REE
CISSREA Project Deferred Incones REE
Partic Rural Progect Deferred Incomes REE
ROSA Project Deffered Incomes R&S

TA MOU Deferred [ncomes REE
CESAAM ACE 2 Deferad Incomes REE
Veraiol Project Deferred [scomes REE
CSSREA POS DOC Deferred Incomes REF
Ecolve Project Deferred Incomes R&E
Laseclogy Project Defemred Incomes BEE
Wetland Ecosystern Deferred Incomes BEE
Erohedth Diefered Incomes BEE
Confucres Institute Deferred Incomes REE
U5 Dollar A'C Dieferred Incomes REE
EURO AC Defemed Incomes REE

MCEF TAGDEY Deforred incomes BEE
AERC Preect Deferred Incomes R&E
AGEC Dollar A'C Deferred Incomes REE
AERC Project 1 Dieferyed ncomes BER
Deferred Income - NTCC

18,906,943
147,077,470

111,648 205

16,663 670

39,463 661

143,765,065

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The defemed income movement 15 as follows:

Balance broaght T Balanee carried
Interaational foaders formard Addiwons i Forward
[udy 1, 2017) inCome statement {Tuge 30, 2015)
Deferred ncome - NCC 18 906949 . 18,906,959 - |
Deferred [ncome Tepemeo 187,077,570 1G] 576,681 55 500 K89 |
AICAD Deeferred Incomes 3,248 698 £06,379 1642310 |
EBF. Profect Deferred Incormes 29212747 15,822,963 13,399,795 |
Dirytanid Farming Deferred Incomes 974,522 8011 186,512
Economsic Dept Deferred Incomes 2480932 1010 | 2,340,811
Finperponds Project Deferred Incomes 11,541 758 6,127,015 | 5514743
Biochemistry Dept Deferred Incomes 318,901 40418 278483 |
Globaits Praject Deferred lncomes 3388 365 | 461421 6,926,944
(reenbouses Project Defersed lncomes 9,956 451 2,065,274 7901178
KAPP Deferred Incomes 43113236 19 590,589 23122647
ADSP Deferred Incomes b, 144,194 35418 1,113,780
Weragrie Project Deferred Incomes 7447510 | 3,015,255 4,482 255
HD_'_SER.EA Project Deferred lnoomes 3Y060 714 E.lE.’-,.IEE _‘43;_?}?.4]9 ]
Partc Fural Project Deferted Incomes 5 6H7.554 1211978 4,454 576 |
ROSA Project Deffered lncomes 8,147 385 5,170,245 2877138 |
TA MOU Deferred Incomes , 11,934 662 7 805,103 1,129,559
CESAAM ACE 2 Deferred Incomes 111,648,208 33,075 278 50,423,573 84199910
Versitod Project Deferred Incomes T 198 ¥27 1 465,067 | 5732260
OSSEEA POS DOC Deferred Incomes 4,679,048 134,022 4545934
Ecolive Praject Daferred Incomes 3,609 652 1,747,781 1,951 901
Limnolegy Project Deferred Incomes 10,892,050 3,312,894 7,370,146
Wetlarsd Ecosvstem Deferred Incomes 16 447 603 §.994,112 5,453 48]
Ecohealth Deferred Incomes 501 605 1.38] 459 5110146
Conflscius Instinate Deferred Incomes 38 997 562 16,044,800 12,052,763
U'S Dollar A'C Deferred lncomes 25 316,863 17,246,497 5,070,368
EURO A'C Defirved [ncomes g1 375,095 65,517,304 25957 792
MCF TAGDEV Deferred Incomes 16,668,670 83346014 29,304,177 70,710,507
AERC Project Defarred Incomes 4498120 455 561 1,042 768
AGEC Dallar A/C Deferred lcomes Q goc 7Ty Q102139 AT A1
AERC Project 2 Deferred Incomes 434,530 403,365 51065
Difarred [ncoms - NTCC 30,463 661 = 10,463,651
TOTAL 33,765,065 515315216 435,905 444 423,084,837

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is 150 2001:2008 Certified
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Egerion Univervity Annual Report and Financiol Statements for the vear ended 30th June 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Nofe 31 = Tegemes Institute Financial Reports

Note 32 (a) - Tegemseo Institute Incomes & Expenditures
Jun- 13 Jun-18

FROJECT NAME Income | OtherIncome | Fanding |Expeases for| matched to | IncomeEXG | for fhe vear
TAPEAT Ifl,!l.'-&}l?] . (2075 TEN| (1075 PET) - ﬂ,ﬂlﬂﬁﬂ?}
TAPRAT 1187204 | 51690698 | 46995529 | 4639452 .| e
QVERHEAD s < | 1me0gs| 1108M0  1mesw SR Tl
MLE (67 085.125) = .| TsTaou | TLeTEOM T
RCT (10,146,190 : | 1siem| 1som C| TeRnee
e (1,476 504 | ogrsoon| slami| e .| s
178 162,008,827 s .| 354088 35401086 | AN
GLC] (882 318% . = | 3 - . il
ELLA (96,776) =l | - | wmawm : %1237
ReNAPRI {L334.707) . - | - : : :
[55D (1 138 %) . 1813950 1915058 - [ 213938
AGRIBENCHMARK. . ; W00 | 2EINE| 2139 - | s 1S
KDB 3 180,145 . - | 3E0M9| 3380140 - 3,380,145
p4p (1,631.363) - - | EMIs0 | L7700 1,707.790
MATD {d4] 351) 113,700 1233492 i34 = YHATI
Workd Bk : - | 2195500 : : . =
FAQICPE | 67259 | o] zsmMs| 231804 | asisnds
AFA : - | resest| pmoer]  imeer : 178,07
EARL Ourgen . 308,782 - : : £
WEP ; - | osgwsiel ashg0e| 28060 .| s
oo : | armse|  snsm|  ensn : 674578
Aftica Practice . 93,179 10045 4045 . T4
AGRA 451134 ; - : . :
GISAMA (72,088 : - : 5 :
PAMEMDP Account - . | dsre| 1 im| > | - | 1MIEN
TAMPA T Accormt . : (L9547 - -
otestfors Guanilos) | - | @SR - : | (6269283)) (6200283
TOTAL s (esTs 77320363 181266557 | 182330859 | 16289293 17811885

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is 50 9001:2008 Certified
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financiof Statements for the year ended 30th Fune 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

#
Mate 32 (b} o Togeasio Institate Dolerred [acomos Sumisaar

Jun-1% Jum-17
Deferred lncome
FROJECT NAME {Fund Balsazes) | Reseme O/ | Combined Diplesred Tacome | Reserve Caailnned

TAPRA [ 4335003 4,935,085 | 3148318 2,158,319
LA.P'RA. 11 245 033 146,933 {4, 187,20l (4,197 204}
OWVERHEAD 5 17021 92T AT 4817 17,097 82 17,997 k)
MLE 82044 s 67085124 67,048,128
RCT 06,287 105,187 9,186 128 9,396,228 |
et 106 139 9 105 138 LT W_; "',ﬂ:'rph
BMGE BASELINE BIBER T9E | §1.660.79%
Facl - jrfer | 351315
TR I7.BE4 201 7 884201

GLCT &41471 5471 GG, 776 96,776
WORLD BANKKAPAP 1158 400 = 1,195 500 1,554,707 1,336,707
ELLA Pl 150,718 L1309 1,135,019
R=WADRI 1,230, Tak L,;!i,‘."il 3380140 YRR 140
[550 517 a4.517 631 343 | " 1618963
AR BENCHMARE T1.404 71604

KIA 8 441 331 441,331 |
RMP 132,364 | 1,672,564 |
AGRA (551 114 (S5L,34) {541,158 (S81,134p
EGERTOM A i 18767
GISANA e 65 TIJIEE : T1 855
PAMEMDP ACCOUNT 777,153 3176 104 !,.'H'l:'!;i = 11342 1175342
TAMPA IT ACCOUNT ' 1420018 1.% 4351067 |  4381,047 |
MM 0T 307,123

FACCFE LT | 1341047 | |
AFA 1,350,357 1.591,.597 |
EARL-Origen 303,791 47

WEP 15,500 515,909

o 514 259 3091259

Afnica Prechice 625412 625,412

ftrew Foees Gam(Losa) 1,352,162 1351, 161 7,1 50,545 T150.945
TOTAL 35000389 | 19577506 | S4S87804 | 157,077,470 | $1.842.068 | 188921632

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Edoeation™
Egerton University is [SO W1 2008 Cenified
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Egerion University Annual Report and Financial Statemenis for the year ended 30th June 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Nite 32{c - Tegesen sttt Cachat Bk Iall
| ' 1 Fﬂiﬂbﬁﬂ -mht.::;;kﬁ " Tl o

BANK AC NAME BANK AICND. KES Eqevalent) Babance
Eperon Usrersty AC Tegmnno TAPRANIC. | J000TIS | 4867482 193540
g Unrity Teemeo It TAPRADNIC | 000038M | 17408009 | AT
Bierion Uieniy Trgemeo hstase NI 007831 93398 M
Sy T HCPNIC | 0BT | G230 |  nssse | aTseees S
Eaten Vv Tegemeo e - KBSPNC | MO0 | ynem | e 1’1;'!?,;-!7'} s
Bgpnon Vaverty Tegmeo it NBE USD | 306010209 e a1l s (531404
Eprca Ut Topnno otte NEK (0000005200000 ikl
o Uy EAESCN -0, oasen] 37 48
Egeton v Tegmmeo TAMPA J1IC NG | TS0 e 144
TOTAL gl KAl %
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Egerton University Annual Report and Financial Statemenis for the year ended 30th June 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

Mature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the University include those parties who have ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.
Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members,

Government of Kenva

The Government of Kenya ts the principal shareholder of the University, halding 100% of the
University's equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantess to all long-term
lenders of the entity, both domestic and external, Other related parties mclude:

1 The National Government;
i} The Ministry of Education;

i) The University Council; :
1) Key Management
v) Egerton University Investment Company
TR T3 T AT 2017
p_‘:",....n,.- rﬂlﬁ’;,ai‘-l Kszhs
Transactions with related parties 1%?5—’“
e T e O t::
a) Grants from the Government iy
Recurrent Grants fom National Govt 5.182.186.700 | 2.768.255.696
Development Grants from National Govt : }ﬂﬁﬁ!ﬂij 145,663,536 |
Total 3470343952 | 2.913,919,435

b} Key management compensation ma 5

Councils’ emoluments 21300240 23,102 993
Compensation 1o the Vice Chancellor d2718372 129233 4158
Compensation to key management 29.664 687 29773001
Total 63,683,199 65,799,409

34, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting ¢vents after the reporting period.

“Transforming Lives Through Quality Fducation™
Egerton University i5 150 2001:2008 Certified
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Egerton University Annual Repors and Financinf Statements for the year ended 30th Fume 2018

Appendix 2: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

EGERTON UNIVERSITY

Break down of Transfers from the State Dopartment of Education

™

_ IFY 17/18
_?_.__:_E.Et'umnt {zrants . B
' Indicate the FY to which
Bank Statement Date | Amount (KSha) the amonnts relare
03-Fual-17 F47.018.B87 20172018
Z4-ha-17 379,723,238 20172018
21-Aug-17 175 046,008 201772018
DE-Sep-17 175,046,008 20172018
14-ier-17 175,046,007 20172018
F0-Mav-17 175,048,008 Z01 72018
1-Dhec-17 147,872 283 2017/2018
O01-Dhec-17 175,046 008 201772018
02-Jan-18 20, 574,457 20172018
02-Jan- 18 175,046,007 20172018
23-Feh-18 175,046 008 2017/2018
|| =3-Feb-18 22,374,457 201 7201E
13-Bdar-18 175,046,008 | 20172018
13_—_1:[5:-]3 2. 574,457 20172018
OF-Apr-18 29,574,457 20172018
O8-Apr-18 175,046,007 I017/2018
: 03-May-18 175,046,008 201 7/2018
07 -Jhun-18 39 574 457 2017/2018
11-Jun-18 175,046,008 2017/2018
19-Jun-18 29,574,457 20172018
2E-Jun-18 175,046,008 20172018
2E-Jun-18) _22.373.457 | 20172018
- ; T e e S R B R T BT
T Development Grants .
Indicate the FY to which
__|Bank Statemont Date| Amount (KShs) the amounts relate
11-Jul-17 31,933 853 20162017
_ L] 30-MNov-17 84,280,522 * 2017/2018
L2 20-Fun-18 203,876,350 2017/2018
Tatal o T e = 320,091,085 e

The shove

Ag,

vl e

Finance Officer

Egerton University

*Transforming Lives Through Quality Education™
Egerton University is IS0 9001:2008 Certified
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amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Head of Accounting Unit
Ministry of Education
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